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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED ¥EX{t THRA A

Chairman’s Statement
TERE
BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded a revenue
of HK$1,706 million, increased by 9.3% as compared to last year; and
a net profit of HK§270 million for the year, representing a decrease of
18.3% as compared to last year.

The Group recorded a gross profit margin of 39.6% for the year ended
31 December 2015, representing a decrease of 2.3 percentage points as
compared to last year; while the net profit margin was recorded 15.8%,
representing a decrease of 5.4 percentage points as compared to last
year.

The significant decrease in net profit for the year was caused by the
substantial exchange loss of approximately HK$92 million incurred in
the Group's foreign currency liabilities, which was mainly due to the
substantial depreciation of RMB in the second-half of the year.

PROSPECTS

The Group has completed the construction of the new Jiangxi plant. The
first phase production line has been officially put into production and has
contributed profit to the Group since the end of last year. The second
phase production line is still undergoing the commissioning stage and is
expected to operate in succession in 2016.

In addition, the Group has committed to new product research and
development, is going to devote more resources in employing scientific
research experts who possess rich chemical experience and in acquiring
more scientific research equipment, so as to expand and enhance the
internal research and development team. The management expects that
the Group can be able to develop new products successfully in the near
future that can meet the trend of refined chemical development.

As always, our management team will leverage on our internal technical
innovation and scientific research and development in a pragmatic and
aggressive approach and continue its persistent efforts to deliver stable
and healthy rewards to the shareholders.

EBEB

HE2015F12A31HILFE - AEESSEA
EERE17.06BBTT  REF EF9.3% © M
Wi F A2. 7088 BMEF R 18.3% °

BEFHI23EE
BEFRI54

AEBTEHNEF39.6% *
D MERMEEAE15.8% -
(EIERaR=N

FREMNBERDY  TERAREBRTHF
K E  SIBEENIINEEEELETEKX
BE 3 B 18 #499,2008 8 7T, ©

R

AEBERBIIATBERR - F—HEE
BREEABRALE  YHEFREMBALNE
EELBFER - mE - HHAESDNEASR
FEER  FEHARA 2016 FF & FEEIRE -

BAN  REB-BERIRNMERME - BB
BHEZER  EEANMNEFEALIER
MBHTER - WIRERITRME - AEARE
TR EER - EREREHARTANE
Ko ANEERBREKNABRLFER - AL
BRI INBE -

—ERE - BEBENTE - A EERD
TR A AES AT LR - 5
PR RIS A [ R



APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and business partners for their persistent support
throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this opportunity
to thank all colleagues and staff for their persistent contribution to the
Group.

On behalf of the Board

Wai Siu Kee
Chairman

Hong Kong, 1 March 2016
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED ¥EX{t THRA A

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWN D
RESULTS OF OPERATION

Revenue and net profit attributable to equity holders of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$1,706 million and HK$270
million respectively, representing a increase of 9.3% and a decrease
of 18.3%, as compared to HK$1,560 million and HK$330 million
respectively for last year. The basic earnings per share was HK32.7 cents
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and HK40 cents for last year.

Revenue

The increase in revenue for the year was mainly attributable to the
new Jiangxi operation. Although part of the increased revenue from
new Jiangxi operation has been offset by decreased revenue caused
by the main products selling price drop during the year, the Group still
recorded HK$146 million increase in revenue for the year ended 31
December 2015. As compared to last year, the average selling price per
ton of methylene chloride and chloroform was about RMB2,770 and
RMB2,140, decreased by approximately 23% and 32% respectively
while the average selling price per ton of by-product caustic soda was
about RMB690 remained stable as for last year. The actual production
output of the main products for the year was approximately 250,000
tons for CMS products, 350,000 tons for 100% dry basis caustic soda
and 170,000 tons for hydrogen peroxide.

In light of the above factors, gross profit margin of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015 decreased from 41.9% of the last year to
39.6%; while the net profit recorded a decrease from 21.29% to 15.8%,
due to the exchange loss arising from the depreciation of RMB.

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs incurred for the year ended 31 December
2015 was HK$98 million, representing an increase by 42.4% as
compared to HK$68 million for last year. The increase for the year mainly
attributable to the increase of transportation expenses incurred in the
new Jiangxi operation. The selling and distribution costs represented
about 5.7% of total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
4.4% for last year.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses incurred for the year ended 31 December 2015
was HK$116 million, which increased by HK$6 million approximately
as compared to HK$110 million last year. The administrative expenses
represented about 6.8% of total revenue for the year, which was broadly
stable as compared to 7.1% for last year.

Finance costs

The interest expenses incurred for the year ended 31 December 2015
was HK$18 million, which decreased by HK$19 million as compared to
HK$37 million last year. Interest expenses dropped during the year was
mainly due to the part of bank borrowing used for the construction of
property, plant and equipment and its related interests was capitalised. As
at 31 December 2015, the total bank borrowings was HK$1,862 million
(31.12.2014: HK$1,939 million). As at 31 December 2015, the Group
maintained bank balances and cash of approximately HK$253 million
(31.12.2014: HK$597 million) which is sufficient to enable the Group to
meet its future capital expenditure and working capital requirements.

Net exchange loss

Net exchange loss incurred for the year ended 31 December 2015
was HK$92 million, which increased by HK$62 million approximately
as compared to HK$30 million last year. The increase for the year was
mainly attributable to the significant depreciation of RMB during the
second half of the year.

INVENTORIES, DEBTORS’ AND CREDITORS’ TURNOVER

The inventory turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 was 66 days, which increased by 9 days as compared to 57 days
for last year.

Due to the stringent credit control, the Group's debtors’ turnover days
was controlled within a favourable level of 30 days for the year ended
31 December 2015 as compared to 30 days for last year which is in line
with the normal credit terms of 7 days to 60 days granted by the Group
to its customers.

The Group's creditors’ turnover days were 36 days for the year ended
31 December 2015 as compared to 31 days for the last year which is
in line with the normal credit terms of 7 days to 45 days granted by the
suppliers to the group.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED ¥EX{t THRA A

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWN D

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The total shareholders' equity of the Group as at 31 December 2015 was
HK$2,346 million (31.12.2014: HK$2,298 million). As at 31 December
2015, the Group had current assets of HK$963 million (31.12.2014:
HK$1,347 million) and current liabilities of HK$960 million (31.12.2014:
HK$1,186 million). The current ratio was 1.0 as at 31 December 2015 as
compared to 1.1 at 31 December 2014.

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and credit facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong
Kong and the PRC. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had outstanding
bank borrowings of HK$1,862 million (31.12.2014: HK$1,939 million).
These bank loans were secured by corporate guarantees provided by
the Company and its certain subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2015,
the Group maintained bank balances and cash of HK$253 million
(31.12.2014: HK$597 million). The Group's net debt-to-equity ratio (total
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents over shareholders’ equity) as
at 31 December 2015 was 68.6% (31.12.2014: 58.4%).

The Group's liquidity position remains strong and the Group possesses
sufficient cash and available banking facilities to meet its commitments,
working capital requirements and future investments for expansion.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a workforce of about 1,600
people. Salaries of employees are maintained at competitive level and
are reviewed annually, with close reference to the relevant labour market
and economic situation. The Group also provides internal training to
staff and provides bonuses based upon staff performance and profits
of the Group. The Group has not experienced any significant problems
with its employees or disruption to its operations due to labour disputes
nor has it experienced any difficulty in the recruitment and retention
of experienced staff. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Apart from those stated in the Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis sections, the Company is exposed to the
following key risks and uncertainties which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 Laws of Hong Kong).

1. Risks Relating to Our Industry

Some of our raw materials and products fall within the category
of hazardous chemicals. Any leakage of such chemicals, due to
equipment malfunction or wrongful operations, may result in
personal injury. The Company regards safety as the top priority. To
minimize risks, regular maintenance of our production equipment
is conducted. Important equipment is inspected by “Special
Equipment Safety Supervision Inspection Institute”, to ensure
proper management of our equipment and devices. In addition,
the company strictly executes safety management standardization.
The company regularly conducts safety classes and shares safety
management experience to our production teams. Emergency drills
are organized twice a year to ensure that our staff members have
thorough knowledge in safe production and avoid the occurrence of
wrongful operations.

2. Credit Risks Relating to Customers

Exposure to bad debts attributable to customers usually intensifies
in a time of weak economic performance. To minimize credit
risks, the management of the Group has appointed dedicated staff
members to handle procedures for determining credit limits, credit
approval and other monitoring procedures, to ensure follow-up with
all receivables in a timely manner. In addition, the Group reviews
the collectability of receivables at the end of a reporting period, to
ensure that sufficient impairment losses are provided for in respect
of uncollectible monies. For the year ended 31 December 2015, no
bad debts were recorded by the Group.

3. Liquidity Risks

In managing liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
cash and cash equivalents at a level which is considered by the
management as sufficient, to satisfy the needs arising from the
Group's operations and to mitigate the effect of fluctuations of cash
flow. The management closely monitors the use of borrowings to
ensure that relevant covenants relating to loans are complied with.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED ¥EX{t THRA A

Management Discussion and Analysis

SR ERE DR
4. Currency Risks

Debts denominated in foreign currencies expose the Group to
foreign exchange risks. The Group closely manages and monitors
foreign exchange risks to ensure that appropriate measures are
taken in a timely manner. The Group will consider entering into
forward contracts in respect of foreign currencies to mitigate relevant
risks as and when appropriate. As of 31 December 2015, the
Group did not have any outstanding forward contracts in respect of
foreign currencies.

5. Interest Rate Risks

The Group's interest rate risks are primarily related to its bank
balances and bank borrowings carried at floating interest rates. The
management will closely monitor interest rate risks and consider
hedging material interest rate fluctuations as and when necessary.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Lee & Man Chemical commits to environmental protection and adopts
various measures to ensure its duties of protecting the environment.
The Company has established HSE department, filled with well qualified
personnel, to continually follow-up on relevant environment-related laws
and provisions, and to ensure that all departments within the Company
comply these regulations without any violation.

In strict adherence to the Montreal Protocol and Vienna Convention for
the Protection of the Ozone Layer, the company successfully converts
CTC, an ozone depleting substance, to chloroform, one of the major
products in the company.

Recovery pumps have been installed at the surface drainage outlets
collecting rainwater for further usage, to achieve zero discharge of
rainwater. PP pipelines of DN150 are installed inside the waste water
drainage to send all the waste water derived from any accident to
an emergency collection pool. The company staff will conduct daily
inspection to the above system, eliminating the possibility that waste
water cannot be fully collected due to corrosion of the waste water
drainage.
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The company installs COD online analyzers, total wastewater volume IC
control cabinets, automatic sampling machines, electromagnetic cutoff
valves, electromagnetic flowmeters at the main wastewater outlet. All data
from the above devices are sent straightly to environmental protection
authorities, to ensure all waste water discharge is within standards.
Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Limited was recognized as one of the
“Outstanding Ecological Development and Environmental Protection
Enterprise” by Changshu Economic Development Zone in both 2014 and
2015.

The company derives various measures to enhance energy conservation.
The energy consumption of caustic soda production was 314 kgce/t,
outperforming the national benchmark value of 325 kgce/t and the
national average of 335 kgce/t. The Suzhou city government recognized
the company performance of energy conservation by granting Jiangsu
Lee & Man Chemical one of the “Circular Economy Model Enterprise” in
2015.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED ¥EX{t THRA A

Corporate Governance Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
believes that sound and reasonable corporate governance practices
are essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and
maximizing shareholders’ interests. On 1 April 2012, the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“Former CG Code") contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) was amended and
renamed as Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (“New CG Code") . The Board is committed to complying with
the code provisions as stated in the New CG code to the extent that
the directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable and
practical to the Company.

The Company has complied with New CG Code during the year of 2015.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions in 2005. All the members of the Board have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company that they have complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2015. The Model Code also applies to other
specified senior management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and role
The Board comprises:

Executive director

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Man Yan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yang Zuo Ning

Ms. Wong Yuet Ming

Independent non-executive director
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

The Board comprises four executive directors (one of whom is the
Chairman and one of whom is the Chief Executive Officer) and three
independent non-executive directors. The three independent non-
executive directors represent more than one-third of the Board. In
addition, three of the independent non-executive directors possess
appropriate legal, professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development
of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance and the
internal controls of the Group's business operations.

The independent non-executive directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework. The Board considers that each independent non-
executive director is independent in character and judgment and that
they all meet the specific independence criteria as required by the Listing
Rules. The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation or confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The independent non-
executive directors are explicitly identified in all of the Company's corporate
communications.

The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all directors. Notice
of at least 14 days have been given to all directors for all regular board
meetings and the directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect
of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all directors within
reasonable time before the meeting. Draft minutes of all board meetings
are circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to
confirmation.
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Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept
by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are provided with
adequate information in a timely manner, which enable the Board to
make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

During the year under review, five full board meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each director is set out below:

EESREETEL T SWRHEAEE N
REEZ WBRE  FAEEHERENS
T R R IR R
B EE S A RORE S EAEL A RER
18 -

ROBEFEAN  CARSREHESE @ BE
EHREBERFIAT :

Number of board
meetings attended

Name of director EEpE HESRRE
Ms. Wai Siu Kee wmhmut 5
Mr. Lee Man Yan FNREE 5
Mr. Yang Zuo Ning BIEESEE 5
Ms. Wong Yuet Ming F AL+ 5
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony FROREHE 5
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP FES8 S EBBSK F i+ 5
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei R TE 5

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on his appointment, so as to ensure that he has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There are also
arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional
development to Directors at the Company’s expenses whenever
necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group's business and the legislative
and regulatory environments to the Directors at Board meetings or
through emails.
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The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5 of
the New CG Code which came into effect on 1 April 2012 on Directors’
training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
December 2015 to the Company. The type of training received is
summarized below:
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BEAGEETH012F4A1BBERZ T
¥ERTABEBESEI 2 TFRIBEXEALS
& BZE2015F12A31HILFE  28E=
HELHEERRKENFEENR R 2 FE
EEBER - WERAARBIRBESESE
AR T -

Attending

Reading external

regulatory seminars/

updates programmes

MEEERE SEIN AR

Name of director BEEpns BEHER BRWNEEH

Executive directors HITES

Ms. Wai Siu Kee wmImrt v v

Mr. Lee Man Yan EXREE v v

Mr. Yang Zuo Ning BIEERE v 4

Ms. Wong Yuet Ming T APAEL L v 4
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES

Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony TRURESE v v

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP FECR I EBBS A F A v v

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wai R E v 4

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and its current members
include:

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in
accounting, business and legal on the Audit Committee. The composition
and members of the Audit Committee complies with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The new written terms of reference
which describe the authority and duties of the Audit Committee were
adopted in March 2012 to conform to the provisions of the New CG
Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company's website.

The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group's financial
reporting and other information to shareholders, the system of internal
controls, risk management and the effectiveness and objectiveness of
the audit process. The Audit Committee also provides an important
link between the Board and the Company's auditors in matters coming
within the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the auditors.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

During the year, three Audit Committee meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:

ENLZECCHEBERIASBATRENZ
SR NMEG - I kAR ES R K B R [E
REBEETHW - HPEEERE 12015
FI2A3BUEFEZETERE ©

FR - HEFIRERZESEHE  ERKE
MHEBREEIIT

Number of attendance

Name of director BEEpE HESHRE
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei R FTE 3
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony TRUGR A 3
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP FRER I EBBS A FAi1 3

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005 and its current
members include:

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

All members of the Remuneration Committee are independent
non-executive directors. The Remuneration Committee advises the
Board on the Group's overall policy and structure for the remuneration
of directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
ensures that no director or any of his associate is involved in deciding
his own remuneration. The new terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were adopted in March 2012 to conform to the provisions of
the New CG Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company's website.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has met during the year to determine
the policy for the remuneration of directors and assess performance of
executive directors and certain senior management and all members
have attended in the meeting.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the fee payable to the
Company's external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Company and its subsidiaries is set out below:

Annual Report 2015 F i

A S GUE

REE2015F 12 A31BIEFE - iAREI R
HETE R RERENF T RIEFA RS A A
NEINEZBET B ERESIOT

HK$'000

FH&T

Audit services EETRTS 1,381
Non-audit services T AR 169
1,550

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012 and its
current members include:

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

The majority members are independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee has the duty of reviewing annually the board
structure and composition.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted in
March 2012 to confirm to the provision of the New CG Code, a copy of
which is posted on the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee has met during the year to approve and
adopt its terms of reference, all members have attended in the meeting.

BOARD DIVERSITY

During the year, the Company continued to monitor the board
composition with regard to its diversity policy which requires board
appointments to be made based on merit and candidates to be
considered against an objective criteria, including diversity. In order to
maintain an appropriate mix and balance of talent, skills, experience
and background on the Board, the Nomination Committee developed
measurable objectives to implement this policy and monitored progress
towards achieving these objectives during the year ended 31 December
2015.
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The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to,
among other things, the age, gender, cultural and educational background
and professional experience of each director, against the Company's
business model and specific needs.

The directors of the Company believes diversity is important to enhance
the Board's effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and
to maintain high standards of corporate governance. The directors of
the Company will continue to monitor and develop new objectives for
implanting and achieving improved diversity on the Board as and when it
considers appropriate with regard to the specific needs of the Company
and the market from time to time.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls of
the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed
to implementing an effective and sound internal controls system to
safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group's assets. The
Board has delegated to executive management the implementation of
the system of internal controls and reviewing of all relevant financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management function within an
established framework.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2015, the directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards made adjustments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable and have prepared the accounts on the going
concern basis. The directors are also responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The rights of the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) are set out in Company's
Articles or Association.

Shareholders of the Company can: (i) convene an extraordinary general
meeting (ii) forward enquiries to the board of directors (iii) forward
proposals at shareholders’ meetings and (iv) nominate Directors for
election. Details of relevant procedures are available on the Company’s
website.

18

ARBTILBEREFTNFR - 5 - X
£ BF HEERURZEELRSHE
AEAR AN EBRNA L ABFERFZRMT
Exgmax -

ARRERRE  ZICBRERZE TR
BHATEN  SRNAEETGUWELERD
KFPEEEREHMEE - ARFEFTHESE
AEARB MM S TR EEFR  EER
RAERERERNITUMBRT  BUARTR
EREFEENZITIE

AERET 12

ExermBEAEB s AMEERR LR
AEHAERE EEFEHNETERRTELZ
AEEZERBARERRAZRAEENE
E-EFRCHRKATEREERE 2K
NETABEZE RS R PR K -
L& - BTRRIEERRBREIEDE

EENRE

ERAAERESURPHEETEE NI
REALE 2 BB Rz R 2 ¥ E R
SREZEKRE - EHREE1E2015F12A31
BEFEZREN EFCERRAREZ
TR B EENE AV EREEL R
HEBCFER - ERBERAGENFRE KT
& RERBEETEREB  EEMBRR -
EENARERTEE 2SR UEEs
1R VE 3 BE AN EE B TE (R B R 2 B S AR o

B SRHEF

ARrRfEHE —BBD - BERNBEARN
RN ERL A EREEIRZBE o ARA]
BCR ([ BR D) O BN AR A RAAR -

RRBBRAAG B RARREFRIAE  (i)A
ExgRLEH R()ERRAS LIREZ
& MVRBEREES  HEREFFBEIR
RAEELER -



INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information about the
Group's performance to shareholders through the publication of interim
results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to dispatching
circulars, notices and financial reports to shareholders, additional
information is also available to shareholders on the website of the
Company.

The annual general meeting provides a useful platform for shareholders
to raise comments and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend annual general meetings for which the Company
gives at least 21 days' notice. The Chairman and Directors and external
auditors are available to answer questions on the Company's businesses
at the meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
directors. In addition, poll voting procedure is included in the circular to
shareholders dispatched together with the annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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EERSREEERGN
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. WAI Siu Kee, aged 71, Chairman of the Company who joined the
Group since its establishment in 1976. She is also the founder, chairman
and chief executive officer of Lee & Man Handbags Holding Limited
(Stock Code: 1488). Ms. Wai has more than 50 years of experience in
the manufacturing industry. She is responsible for the development of
corporate strategies, corporate planning and overall management of the
Group and in particular the marketing and development of the business
of the Group. Ms. Wai is the honorary permanent president of the Hong
Kong Baptist University Foundation. Ms. Wai is the mother of Mr. Lee
Man Yan, the Executive Director and Chief Executive Office of the Group.

Mr. LEE Man Yan, aged 38, the member of Chinese People's Political
Consultative Committee of Jiangxi and Chief Executive Office of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Lee is in charge of the
corporate and strategic planning of the Group, and is responsible for the
management operations, procurement, staff management and public
relations in the PRC of the business. He graduated from the University of
British Columbia, Canada with a bachelor's degree in commerce. Mr. Lee
was awarded Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong 2013 and Young
Entrepreneur Award 2013. He is appointed as member of Court of the
Hong Kong Baptist University and Committee Member of Hong Kong
Young Industrialists Council. Mr. Lee is a son of Ms. Wai Siu Kee, the
Group's Chairman.

Mr. YANG Zuo Ning, aged 54, an Executive Director and Managing
Director of the Group. He joined the Group in 2006. He is a national
acclaimed senior engineer and has 33 years of production experience in
chlor-alkali industries. He is responsible for the strategic planning, general
management and advisory of production engineering to the Group.

Ms. WONG Yuet Ming, aged 51, an Executive Director, Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Group. She is also the company
secretary of Lee & Man Handbags Holding Limited (Stock Code: 1488).
She joined the Group in 2004 and has over 26 years of experience
in the field of auditing and accounting. She holds a master's degree in
business administration from the University of Surrey, United Kingdom.
Ms. Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. She is responsible for the supervision and
management of the Group's financial matters.

20

BOBLL 715 AEEEFE  RARQH
E1976F M MA - FRNFZENFRE
EERAR (MRS 1488)AIBA « =
EFRITHRER - L TREEERBS0EK
B HAEASEMNMERE  CEXER
EEBEBEENEE  LEEAEEEBLHD
MGEENER - BRIRETEEZE
BESNREEFRF - LT AEAEEHT
EEREEHTESXE TR -

ZVREE 38 IAEEMEESES
MASEEFHNITE © HHR2000F INAKE
EoFEEREALEEEREMRE - I
EERELEEE  EWMYHERE ASE
BRECHEARNGEEBRERIE - FEX
RIEREBSRELEAE  HAFELE
i o BEABEBA0IZEEESFIERR
013FEFHER - RBEZEAEBES
AREBBRZERENBEETFIERHBEUNE
KRB - FREARAEEEIFEFLI BRI
BT o

BEERE 545 ARBEWTEENES
BIARAEIE o WIN2006F IIANKE - KI5H
BRERTRMBE  HHEBFER(CTE
ERfT &R RAEEAKE  REKRE -
AREEE TEREfREERMREE -

FTABELZL 515 AEBYITES  BK
BEEHRNRNE - HRABEEXFRERA
A (IRMREE - 1488) MR EITWE © 1552004
FMARER  HEHBA26FZHE NG
B EEEAEGRIHFERSB 2 IHEER
TEA TALARBBHFARSHMAE
ZEBREE MABESHMAEEE -
BEAEBMBEERER -



INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Kai Tung, Tony, aged 73, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Group. He has been a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong
since 1968 and has also been admitted as a solicitor in England and
Wales. He is currently a consultant at Messrs. Hastings & Co., Solicitors
and Notaries.

Mr. WAN Chi Keung, Aaron BBS, JP, aged 66, an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Group. He holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration of the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree in Buddhist studies of the University of Hong Kong, also an
associate of the Institution of Business Agents, a member of the Land
Institute (London), an associate of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators,
a fellow of The Institute of Administrative Accounting and a fellow of The
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. He is engaged in the business
of property and chattel valuation and auction and has over 32 years of
related experience. Mr. Wan serves as an independent non-executive
director in CNC Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8356).

Mr. HENG Victor Ja Wei, aged 38, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Group. He is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a master of science degree of the Imperial College
of Science, Technology and Medicine, the University of London. He is
a member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Heng serves as an independent non-executive director in China Fire
Safety Enterprise Group Limited (Stock Code: 0445), Matrix Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1005) and Lee & Man Handbags Holding Limited
(Stock Code: 1488). He also serves as the company secretary and
authorized representative of China Life Insurance Company Limited (Stock
Code: 2628).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAM Hiu Fung, aged 45, Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Lee &
Man Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2005 and has 22 years
of experience in financial management. He holds a bachelor's degree in
Accountancy from City University of Hong Kong and a master's degree in
International Business from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is responsible for the supervision on the financial
matters, tax issues and general management.

Mr. HUI Jun, Dan, aged 61, Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Lee
& Man Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2005 and has over
34 years experience in sales, marketing and business development
in overseas and PRC enterprises. He is responsible for developing the
Company's sales strategies, exploring potential markets and logistics
management.
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ESNEREEERN

Mr. XIA Xu Dong, aged 41, Director of Production of Jiangsu Lee &
Man Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2006 and has 19 years
of production experience in chlor-alkali industries. He is responsible for
the supervision and general management of production department of
Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Limited.

Dr. TSE Man Kin, aged 44, Director of Research & Development of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2008 and has 21 years of experience
in chemical research and research management. He holds a Ph.D in
Chemistry from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and is a member
of the American Chemical Society. He is responsible for the research and
development of the Group.

Mr. WU Zeng Long, aged 46, Director of Sales of the Group. He joined
the Group in 2007 and has 23 years of experience in sales, marketing
and business development. He holds a bachelor's degree in applied
chemistry. He is responsible for sales and logistics activities of Jiangsu
Lee & Man Chemical Limited and Jiangxi Lee & Man Chemical Limited.

Mr. CHEAH Ming Huat, aged 43, Financial Controller of Jiangxi Lee
& Man Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2011 and has 18
years of experience in financial management. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and chartered
accountant of Malaysian Institute of Accountants. He is responsible for
the supervision on the financial matters, treasure management, internal
control, tax issues and general management.

Mr. ZHOU Ai Hua, aged 40, Deputy General Manager of Jiangxi Lee &
Man Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2006 and has 18 years
of production engineering experience in refined chemicals and chlor-
alkali industries. He is responsible for the production of fluorochemical
and chlor-alkali chemical and general management of Jiangxi Lee & Man
Chemical Limited.

Mr. QIU Yi Lin, aged 43, Deputy General Manager of Jiangxi Lee &
Man Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2006. He acquired
qualification of mechanical engineer in 2003 and has 19 years of
management experience in power station and electrical and mechanical
equipment. He is responsible for the operation and general management
of power station as well as facility maintenance of Jiangxi Lee & Man
Chemical Limited.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group is
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of chemical products.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 32.

An interim dividend of HK7 cents per share amounting to
HK$57,750,000 in aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the
year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK5
cents per share to the shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members on 17 May 2016, amounting to HK41,250,000 in total,
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to shareholders represented the aggregation of the
share premium and retained profits of HK$66,628,000 (2014:
HK$101,016,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 118.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Man Yan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yang Zuo Ning

Ms. Wong Yuet Ming

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

In accordance with the provisions of the Company's Articles of
Association, Ms. Wai Siu Kee and Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each of the other independent non-executive
directors is the period up to his retirement as required by the Company's
Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ms. Wai Siu Kee has entered into a service agreement with the Company
on 1 September 2014 for a period of three years, which will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party by three months'
prior written notice.

Mr. Lee Man Yan has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial period of three years commencing 16 August 2013, which
will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party by
three months' prior written notice.

Mr. Yang Zuo Ning and Ms. Wong Yuet Ming have each renewed into
a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of one year
commencing 27 June 2015, which may be terminated by either party by
three months' prior written notice.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance
(the "SFO")) which have been notified of the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code") of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(a) Long positions in shares of the Company

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of issued

Annual Report 2015 F 3

ESRRNRERKRGRZER

R2015F 128318 ARAZSEERES
THABRESE B8 ARAR B R EGH
FE(EEREBEHFMBEGA(BHFRBEK
1) EBXVER) MR 5 RABRANR (D - B IZA
BIEEE RS EGIEXVIET R8N EE M
SARNRNEBHAERINABR AR ([H
FTMBBESIAR  REREIIBREE
5 RAIEGRAIEISGEFE 2 BEM - B2
RIEH R AT A EmRA(T ETRAID 2 &
MARESETESF R H2ZETFRI([1R%E
SRR Mg AR B R R BT 2 s ROK A IR
T

(@) REQIARBZHFE
RRAREFRR01BE T2 LB

Percentage of the
issued share capital

Name of director Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company
EEpA -37) FriFE 81T EARARE T
HERBE RAF L
Lee Man Yan Held by controlled corporation 618,750,000 75%
(note)
FXRE HEEEERE (Btat)

note: These shares are held by Fortune Star Tradings Ltd (“Fortune Star").

(b) Long positions in shares of the associated corporations of
the Company

Mt : Euthg{» Jh B Fortune Star Tradings Ltd.([ Fortune

StarD#FH °

(b) RARTEBEEZRBER

Name of Number of Percentage of the

associated issued ordinary issued shares of the

Name of Director Capacity company shares held associated company

FFE T 1A R

EEpR B4 HEEE AR EERHE ERTRAFSL

Lee Man Yan Beneficial owner Fortune Star 45 (note) 45%
TR EmEAA (Hfat)

note: As Fortune Star owns more than 50% of the Company, Fortune Star is an
associated corporation of the Company under the SFO. The issued share capital
of Fortune Star is owned by Mr. Lee Man Yan, a Director, as to 45% and Mr. Lee
Wan Keung as to the remaining 55%. Ms. Wai Siu Kee is a director of Fortune
Star.
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Other than disclosed above, none of the directors or the chief executive,
or any of their associates, had any interests or short positions in any
shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations, which had to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 14 December
20071, under which the directors or the chief executive of the Company
or their associates may be granted options to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

Details of the share option scheme and movement of the share options
during the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2015, shareholders (other than directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had interests and short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company
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HR
RRRERO.ETTZ BB

Number of
issued ordinary

Percentage of the
issued share capital

Name of shareholders Capacity shares held of the Company

MRER & 56 HERHE HE 8T

RAEE D

Fortune Star Beneficial owner 618,750,000 75%
BEmEAA

Other than disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Company Kk EXFTHEESN - KR2015F12A318 - #E#&

has not been notified by any persons (other than directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements, some of which are also
the disclosable connected transaction pursuant to Listing Rules. In the
opinion of the independent non-executive directors, these transactions
entered into by the Group were:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there was no
available comparison, on terms that were fair and reasonable so far
as the shareholders of the Company were concerned;

(iif) either (a) in accordance with the terms of the agreements; or (b)
where there were no such agreements, on terms no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third parties; and

(iv) within the relevant cap amounts as agreed by the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which need

to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”, no
contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company and
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review and outlook of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group's performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its results and financial position are provided
in the Chairman's Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
respectively from pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 11 of this Annual Report.

MAIJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers were less than 20% of total turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers were approximately 70% of the Group's total purchases
and the purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier were
approximately 35% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders which, to the
knowledge of the directors, owned more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the five
largest customers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are independent.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors'
and officers' liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by the provisions of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Ms. Wai Siu Kee

CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong, 1 March 2016
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Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lee & Man
Chemical Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 32 to 117,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

1 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
AeBEmRHEMEEERER

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hist FET FHT
Revenue WA 5&6 1,705,879 1,560,028
Cost of sales SHER A (1,030,707) (906,101)
Gross profit EA 675,172 653,927
Other income HA WA 7 84,765 86,245
Net (loss) gain from fair value changes on PTESRITARNFEZES .
derivative financial instruments F BB W (670) 3911
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SEA AR (97,520) (68,480)
General and administrative expenses 1THER (116,422) (109,991)
Research and development cost IRID RN (76,626) (83,904)
Finance costs BLE KR 9 (17,984) (37,336)
Net exchange loss bE 5 FE R (92,356) (30,153)
Share of loss of joint ventures EEEEEEE (2,415) (2,749)
Profit before taxation BRA B8 A 355,944 411,470
Income tax expense FR{SHisZ 8 (86,266) (81,359)
Profit for the year F 1A% ) 9 269,678 330,111
Other comprehensive (expense) income  H{th2E (X H)
ltems that will not be reclassified to BT 8B 7 HERm
profit or loss: HE :
Exchange differences arising on translation R 1 A A B 2R (98,245) (49,392)
Net gain on hedging instruments in BendmITEZ
cash flow hedges F R 632 2,136
Other comprehensive expense for the year FAEMEEZ L (97,613) (47,256)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZHEWEERE 172,065 282,855
Earnings per share GRZERH) 10
Basic (HK cents) EARCGE) 32.7 40.0
Diluted (HK cents) 5 (B 32.7 40.0
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(At 31 December 2015)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(20154 12A318)

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Investment property
Intangible assets

Deposits paid for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Interests in joint ventures

Other deposits

Derivative financial instruments

Deferred tax asset

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

Prepaid lease payments

Trade and other receivables

Tax recoverable
Loan to a joint venture

Amount due from a joint venture
Derivative financial instruments

Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

Amounts due to related companies

Taxation payable

Derivative financial instruments
Bank borrowings — due within 1 year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

FRBEE

E NI e
BENEEFR
BREME

BV EE

BEVE BEMREZ

EfNEIE
BEhE R
Hiz] &
TEERTA
EERAEE

RBEE

&

TRNEERIE
FEWE 5 N BA 7R
e IR
BEMEZER
AR R
TEERTA
RITHEBRNIRE

RBRE
FERNTE 5 R B A 50
FEf BB AR F0R

FEfNTEIR
e T A

RITER— 15FAEIE

REBEEFE

REERRBAE
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2015
HK$'000
TET

3,295,041
122,609
46,901
3,570

48,964
19,158
99,387

23,780

3,659,410

206,715
3,222
379,206
11,976
93,652
15,138

252,721

962,630

301,886
3,793
42,517
42
611,444

959,682

2,948

3,662,358

2014
HK$'000
TAT

2,929,545
78,890
48,953

4,945

216,983
24,143
38,197

31
25,349

3,367,036

165,390
1,877
474,993
91,103
15,625
1,269
596,752

1,347,009

439,983
4,047
28,001
4,621
709,695

1,186,347

160,662

3,527,698



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e s R

(At 31 December 2015)

(R2015%F12A318)

2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt FET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERS
Other payables FEST B Ath 5RIE 25 65,506 =
Bank borrowings — due after 1 year SRITER — 11550 27 1,250,390 1,229,347
Derivative financial instruments TESMITA 20 184 388
1,316,080 1,229,735
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,346,278 2,297,963
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B #E
Share capital [N 28 82,500 82,500
Reserves i 2,263,778 2,215,463
2,346,278 2,297,963

The consolidated financial statements on pages 32 to 117 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 1 March
2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wai Siu Kee

CHAIRMAN
e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAMREDE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

Non- Safety

Share Share  distributable fund
capital ~ premium reserve reserve
AR 22

B BfiER e EARE
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000
AETn BT B R AR

Share
Translation Hedging options Special  Accumulated
reserve Teserve Teserve Teserve profits Total

Eifgfi  HhEE  BRERE  RABR 2 aif
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSO0D
AT BT BT BT BRTR BETR

(note ) (note i)
(i) (W)

At Januay 2014 H014E181A 82500 W07 204341 1581118112 Q%52 183430 (9736) 1563411 2130608
Exchange differences arising fiom translation REEMELNELZR - - - - (49392) - - - - (49392)
Net adjustment on cash flow hedges kA ke - - - - - 2,136 - - - 2136
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year  FREL2E (3t )ik - - - - (49392) 213 - - - (47,256)
Proft for the year FRgH - - - - - - - - 30,111 30,111

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year ~ £MZT (%t LS - - - - (49392) 2136 - - 330,111 282,855
Release upon deregistation of a subsiciary L ERaUIENG g - - - - (1,029) - - - 1029 -
Cash dividends recognised as distibution (Note 1)  BERAEZREREM 1) = = - - - - - - (1155000 (115500)
Transfer to non-distributable reserve fund B\FIHRERES - = 47278 = = = = = (47278) =
Transfer to safety fund resenve EARRERERE = - - 1777 - - - - () -
At 31 December 2014 R0145128318 82,500 20307 251619 175588 130,701 (816) 163,430 (97362) 172999 2,297,963
Exchange differences arising from translation REEmELNELZE - - - - (98,245) - - - - (98,245)
Net adjustment on cash flow hedges ReRsh ALER - - - - - 632 - - - 632
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year  ERE 128 (311t )& - - - - (98245) 63 - - - (97612)
Proftfor the year EREH - - - - - - - - 269,678 269678
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year M2 (2% - - - - (98245) 632 - - 269678 172,065
Lapse of shae option BREAR - - - - - - (163430 = 163,430 =
Cash dividends recognised as distibution (Note 1)  BERAEZBEREMi11) = = - - - - - - (13750)  (123750)
Transfer to non-distributable reserve fund EATTHREERS = - 37.85% = = = = = (37856) =
Transfer to safety fund resenve #)\Z2550R = - - 2760 - - - - (2760) -
At 31 December 2015 H015E12A318 8500 W37 289475 20346 3456 (184 - (732 1998738 2346278
notes: Wit

(i)  According to the relevant laws in the People's Republic of China (“PRC"), wholly (i)  RIEFEAREME(THE])HEEE  EHEH

foreign-owned enterprises in the PRC are required to transfer at least 10% of their net
profits after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to a non-
distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the distribution of a dividend
to equity owners. The non-distributable reserve fund can be used to offset the previous
years' losses, if any. The non-distributable reserve fund is non-distributable other than
upon liquidation.

(i) The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value

of the share capital issued by the Company and the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in December 2001.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Finance costs
Release of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net loss (gain) from fair value changes on derivative
financial instruments
Interest income

Share of loss of joint ventures

Operating cash flows before movements in working
capital

Increase in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

(Decrease) increase in derivative financial instruments

(Decrease) increase in amounts due to related

companies

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

RERK

BRI

THEE -

YxE - BEREREBIINE
BE KA
BENHEERZEL

B EE#H
HEWE - BELREER
TTESRITARNTES
2 FEER ()
AESCON
EIEREREEBR

LEESEYPR K EE
RE&mnE
FEEMN
FEWE 5 I Bt sRosR > (35 0)
FERTE 5 I EoAth FRIRE AN
PTESRITACKD)IEM
FEfRE AR F0R

O )38

REXBAERE
EfNAEHRE

REXBREREFH
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2015
HK$'000
FTET

355,944

183,476
17,984
2,294
1,206
420

670
(15,579)
2,415

548,830

(24,885)

145,009
68,950
(3.521)

(254)

734,129
(86,793)

647,336

2014
HK$'000
TAT

411,470

156,246
37,336
1,703
1,236
1,834

(3911)
(37,506)
2,749

571,157

(45,076)

(194,314)
46,562
8,827

1,109

388,265
(90,567)

297,698



INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Payment for prepaid lease payments

Other deposits paid

Loan to a joint venture

Purchase of investment property

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest received

Government grants received for acquisition of
land use right

(Decrease) increase in construction payables

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of bank borrowings

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Settlement of derivative financial instruments
under hedge accounting

Bank borrowings raised

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR

REEH
BEVE BEEERE
BEVE BELEERE
ZENE®
BENEEFE N
HiENEI 2
BEMRZER
BENEMRE
HEME - BB KRB
PSR
EYFLE
BEUEIRBE A
F B R
e EEF IR OB )N
REZREHERSFE
BMEEH
ERIRITHER
EfAE
ERFE
TESBTAREHEDE
THE

MBERITHER

BMEFEH(R)BREFHE

BeREABRSEEHD

REDZHERER
BEEA

ERESH o IE

RERZRERER
REEA
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2015
HK$'000
FET
(311,847)
(195,465)
(77,438)
(66,870)
(4,263)

383
15,579

30,808
(97,800)

(706,913)

(1,104,770)
(123,750)
(57,900)

(1,847)

1,028,467

(259,800)

(319,377)

596,752

(24,654)

252,721

2014
HK$'000
FAT
(524,708)
(390,547)
(36,197)
(7,750)
(1,391)

1,478
37,506

81,639

(839,970)

(775,798)
(115,500)
(50,302)

(4,346)

1,043,153

97,207

(445,065)

1,061,504

(19,687)

596,752



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
y= A

e M IE AR M EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). lts ultimate holding
company and immediate parent is Fortune Star Tradings Limited
(“Fortune Star"), a company which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lee Wan Keung.
The address of the registered office of the Company is disclosed in
the section “Corporate Information” to the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB"), while
the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK dollars”) as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2011-2013 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations!

Disclosure Initiative!

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture3

Investment Entities: Applying the

Annual Report 2015 F 3

FERMATREESATE & R 358 & 2R
([FRMBEEER ) (E)

B BME 1 RERZ T KRBT EE

PR A

REEY EREREAATEB/MERK
M2 #R] MR IERT BB M M E LR -

BB SRS LR ST A
95k

BB SRR EEARMKRA2
£15%5%

BB SRS LR U BE S R AE i
F115RUERTAR) HEHEEHEA

BB LEER] FEWFE
F15UBETA)

EEEERF 1657 IrEEBHENT
REZSTER B TERE
F385R(IBETA) B!

R ETERIE 165}

B EEME

Consolidation Exception’

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier
application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier
application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new requirements for
general hedge accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for
financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through
other comprehensive income’ (“FVTOCI") measurement category
for certain simple debt instruments.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS R ER MY EE

17 N == I
(For the ye

ar ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A31HIEFE)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as
fair value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9: (Continued)

« in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

« the new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in HKAS 39. Under HKAS 39, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting. In addition, the retrospective quantitative
effectiveness test has been remained. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk management activities have
also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities (e.g. the Group's investments in redeemable notes that are
currently classified as available-for-sale investments may have to be
measured at fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods,
with changes in the fair value being recognised in profit or loss).
Regarding the Group's financial assets, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in credit risk of financial liabilities that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss are disclosed in note 39.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS R ER MY EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015)

2.

(BZE2015F12A31HILFE)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

«  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
«  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
«  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

«  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

«  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group's consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a
detailed review.

The directors anticipate that the application of other new and

revised standards will have no material impact on the results and
the financial position of the Group.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("con).

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap
622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’ reports and
audits became effective for the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015. Further, the disclosure requirements
set out in the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts have been
amended with reference to the new CO and to streamline with
HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015 have been changed to comply with
these new requirements. Comparative information in respect of
the financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based on the new
requirements. Information previously required to be disclosed under
the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under the new CO
or amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36. In addition, for financial reporting
purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

«  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

«  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

«  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

«  has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

«  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group's voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

«  the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

«  potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

+  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

«  any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholder's meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of
the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiaries.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS R ER MY EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015)

3.

(BZE2015F12A31HILFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture. When
the Group's share of losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group's
interest in that joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint venture. An investment in
a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes a joint venture. On acquisition
of the investment in a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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Investments in jointly ventures (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be a joint venture, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A31HLFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interest in a joint operation

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
joint arrangement.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations,
the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation to its interest in

a joint operation:

«  its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;
«  its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;
« its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from

the joint operation;

« its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the
joint operation; and

« its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance with the
HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

«  the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

«  the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

«  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

« it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

« the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting
the above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production of goods or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

(For the year ended 31 December 2015)

3.
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(BZE2015F12A31HILFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties, plant and machinery in the course of construction for
production or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy. Such assets are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other
than construction in progress less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis.
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Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes). Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method. Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS R ER MY EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investment property (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF scheme”), which
are defined contribution plans, are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise except for:

+  exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating
to assets under construction for future productive use, which
are included in the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings;

«  exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting
policies below); and

«  exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operation
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M EE
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(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of
the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interest
in a joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interest are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
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Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). Service and non-market
base performance conditions are not taken in account when
estimating the fair value at measurement date.

Instead, service and non-market base performance conditions are
taken in consideration to determine the number of share options
that are expected to ultimately vest.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
loans and receivables and financial assets at FVTPL. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, loan to a joint venture, amount due
from a joint venture and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Financial assets at fair value through profit loss
Financial assets classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is

either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

«  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

«  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

« it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period ranged 7 to 60 days and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other

than those financial liabilities at FVTPL, of which the interest expense
is included in net gains or losses.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liabilities are derivatives that are not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts
due to related companies and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition in profit or
loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments for
cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group documents
the relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in
offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging (Continued)
Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (hedging reserve) are reclassified to profit or
loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or
loss, in the same line of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as the recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the
hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in hedging reserve at that time remains in
equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

62

FEERBR(E)
SRMIAE)
ITEMBTAREH(E)
REemEH

EEMNAERIEREREE P 2ITE
TARHERZS  HAREDRHEAYK
=mAMERY Rt R EPEER - HEX
B0 2 BB NS R o

EWREHIEE R BEARERR - 2
AIERR A2 ERE R R RER T
(B c 2R ER DO BEE
— IR S B M e R
RHVERIEB A ©

EAKEMRE ARG  HHTACE
o B BRI ITESRTEN A B
SFDE - WP SFHEAR KL - B
AREMEEKE N R REP R
ERRERFRERERA - WERAR
FRENBRATER - WIEARZEH
TEET - NMERZ Rt BENRNME

AU TESR

HAEEEKRRSANENENEE
o AIRERERER I EREREE

REEERSREER - ZBEENR
mEED B REEREARREMEE
Was ERR L i an Rt 2 Rt e B
Bz aNERNERER -

MR AEE 2 BEEERS - BURSER
B AEERRLERSHEE - W
HERATBRABEC RIERED M REN
REZZERBRAER -



Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make various estimates based on past experience and expectations
of the future and other information. The key sources of estimation
uncertainty that can significantly affect the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements
within the next financial year are disclosed below.

Impairment loss on trade receivables

The assessment of the impairment loss on trade receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of accounts and on management's judgment. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness of each customer. If the financial conditions of the
Group's customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be
required. Impairment is made based on the estimation of the
future cash flow discounted at the original effective rate to calculate
the present value. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying value
of trade receivables (net of impairment loss) was approximately
HK$45,543,000 (2014: HK$33,220,000).

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the inventories listing at the end of each
reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for use
in operation. Estimation of net realisable value are based on the
most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made,
of the amount the inventories are expected to realise. Where the
net realisable value is less than the cost, a material write down may
arise. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of inventories
(net of allowances) was approximately HK$206,715,000 (2014:
HK$165,390,000).
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Income taxes

As at 31 December 2014, a deferred tax asset in relation to unused
tax losses of approximately HK$123,471,000 (2015: Nil) was
not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in
the future. In cases where the expectation for future profit streams
changes, a recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a
recognition takes place.

Recognition of deferred tax

As at 31 December 2015, no deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised on the undistributed profits of the group companies in
the PRC as the Group plans to retain those profits in the respective
entities for their daily operations and future developments. In case
there is a change in such plan, additional tax liabilities will arise,
which will be recognised in the profit or loss for the period in which
the management intends to declare such profits in the foreseeable
future or the Group's future development plan is amended,
whichever is earlier. Details of the above unrecognised liabilities are
set out in note 8.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The board of directors of the
Company determines the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The directors work closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model and to understand the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A31HLFE)

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are
not based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of
certain types of financial instruments. Notes 16 and 39c provide
detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of various
assets and liabilities.

REVENUE

All the Group's revenue for the year is derived from manufacture
and sales of chemical products.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(a) Operating segments

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on
the basis of internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
makers (“CODMs"), being the Chairman of the Company, in
order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. The CODMs review the Group's profit as a
whole, which is generated solely from the manufacture and
sale of chemical products and determined in accordance with
the Group's accounting policies, for performance assessment.
Therefore no separate segment information is prepared by the
Group.

(b) Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in the PRC. Its non-current
assets are located in the PRC.

All the Group's revenue from external customers is derived
from the PRC for both years.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. PWEHE)
(c) Revenue from major products (0 EEEMBA
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its AEENFEERBASTAT

major products:

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Chloromethane products Rizgt® 644,856 736,018
Caustic soda 1B 743,113 583,083
Hydrogen peroxide PEE=N el 142,317 137,867
Others Hib 175,593 103,060

1,705,879 1,560,028

(d) Information about major customers d) FEEFER
No customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the MEFEHELCIERBEERR
Group in both years. B A FE U AR B AN &= B 4 A /Y
109% °
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HftultA

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Bank interest income HRITHALEWA 15,579 37,506
Government grants (note) BT BA (A75E) 39,790 21,771
Scrap sales EEmR U 7,604 13,253
Others Hih 21,792 13,715
84,765 86,245

note: The Group recognises these grants as other income upon receipt. Hia  AREBERKEZ SRR T AN o
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (#EZE2015F12A31HIEFE)

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

FRriSR3ZH

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
The charge comprises: XHEE
Current tax: REATRIA ¢
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") ':F' Bl b2 TS 62,034 83,035
Withholding tax on dividend income IR B U A TR 24,550 -
Other jurisdiction Hh AhE M= 36 43
Overprovision in prior years: AR E % 5T1R
EIT B (TSR (878) (2,255)
Deferred tax: IRIERIA -
Current year REEIRILER 524 536
86,266 81,359

The Group's major business is in the PRC. Under the Law of the
PRC on EIT and its Implementation Regulation, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, Jiangsu L&M

was entitled to a reduced EIT rate of 15% as it has been qualified as
a High and New Technology Enterprise.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rate
prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made for both years since
there is no assessable profit for both years.
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The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:
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FARERX B S Ea MEBEEE
BRI ARSI

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHETT
Profit before tax B A A 355,944 411,470
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25%  ¥ZZAH P15 R 2502 Fi 18
(2014: 25%) (2014 : 25%) 88,986 102,868
Tax effect of share of loss of joint ventures EEEEtEERZ
MG E 604 687
Tax effect of expenses not deductible in BT FEER B M N AT HI TR ST HH 2
determining taxable profit M E 25,504 17,470
Tax effect of income not taxable in determining & & & =R 5 i FII b 7B FE R L UL
taxable profit 2R (946) (4,910)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIEE R R E - 16,530
Effect of concessionary rate granted to HEMEARERERE R
a PRC subsidiary (41,058) (54,409)
Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary HiRAEENAMEER 2 &
operating in other jurisdiction 9,740 4,842
Overprovision in respect of prior year LARTFEZ5HE (878) (2,255)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not A2 AR ERE T E B
recognised (20,760) -
Utilisation of other deductible temporary {5 F 2 B TERR HY ELqth AT HE 40
difference previously recognised ERMER 524 536
Withholding tax on dividend income PR B ATELR PSR 24,550 =
Income tax expense for the year FAMMERZH 86,266 81,359

At 31 December 2014, the Group had unutilised tax loss of a
PRC subsidiary of HK$123,471,000 (2015: Nil) available to offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset had been recognised
on the tax loss due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
This tax loss was fully utilised during the year ended 31 December
2015.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$2,041,149,000 (2014:
HK$2,158,100,000) as the directors believe that the Company is
able to control the timing of the distribution by its subsidiaries.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EI{t THERAE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS ER AR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (#(Z=2015F12A318ILFE)

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 8. FMBMIHE)
The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and LWTALTEREEREERNFARETH
movement thereon during the current and prior reporting period: R R EE)

Deferred

income

in respect of

subsidy

received for

acquisition of

prepaid lease

payments

FEEE

I

i Y ER AL

ZIRFEYA

HK$'000

FHET
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1/81H (26,372)
Charged to profit or loss LABE 536
Exchange realignment BEE 5 S L 487
At 31 December 2014 MR2014512H31H (25,349)
Charged to profit or loss BNk 524
Exchange realignment b SR 1,045
At 31 December 2015 20155 12A31H (23,780)
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Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging:

Directors’” emoluments (note 12)
Other staff costs:
Salaries and other benefits
(excluding directors)
Retirement benefit schemes contributions
(excluding directors)

Total staff costs

Finance costs:
Interest on bank borrowings wholly
repayable within five years
Less: amounts capitalised to property,
plant and equipment (note)

Net adjustment on interest rate swaps
designated as cash flow hedges of
floating rate debt

Release of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

note: Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose from the general borrowings
and were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 2.75% (2014: 2.30%)

per annum to expenditures on qualifying assets.

FASA 2R -

BE=HM(ME12)
HAR B A -
e R EAER
(BERRIN
RIRBFIFT IR
(ZFEIN)

8 TRAARER

BERA

MEH —BERAFA
2EMEE ZIRITER

B R BB R
REENMEz 2 B(HT)

1B RERIRE AT
MEEMEHNZABRFHE

BN E SR
B EE#H
ZEETNE -

— & TR

—IFERT RIS
ERRAXLHTFERA
E N NS
e
HEME - BB R

R iEEE

Annual Report 2015 F 3

2015
HK$°000
TERT

9,483

127,442

15,684

152,609

57,900

(41,763)

16,137

1,847

17,984

2,294
1,206

1,381

169
1,030,707
183,476

420

AR -
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2014
HK$'000
THAT

9,763

102,941

9,955

122,659

50,302

(17,312)

32,990

4,346

37,336

1,703
1,236

1,381
168
906,101

156,246

1,834

HiF - FNEERAERETI A —RIERMEEL
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
y= A

e M IE AR M EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015)

(BZE2015F12A31HILFE)

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit for the year of HK$269,678,000 (2014:
HK$330,111,000) and 825,000,000 (2014: 825,000,000) shares
in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted eamings per share for both years did
not assume the exercise of the Company’s options because the
exercise price of those options was higher than the average market
price for shares in both years.

=RET

EREARBEBERNTIZE N & F
269,678,000 7T (2014 : 330,111,000
7 7T ) & 825,000,000 % ( 2014 :
825,000,0000% ) {EZT& -

HRMEFERREZTEESREFERE
AFHHE - Bt - RMEFERSER
BERBNFEBRRTETTER R RLHE -

DIVIDENDS 11. B2
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Dividends recognised as distributions FRADERNIKLZ
during the year: RS
Final dividend of HK8 cents per share HE2014F 128310 LFE
for the year ended 31 December 2014 REA B =8l 66,000 =
Interim dividend of HK7 cents per share HE2015F 128310 LFE
for the year ended 31 December 2015 I BB A7 57,750 =
Final dividend of HK7 cents per share HZE2013F12A31HILEE
for the year ended 31 December 2013 REARR BB A7 - 57,750
Interim dividend of HK7 cents per share HE2014F12A31HIEEE
for the year ended 31 December 2014 FER S B AR 7L - 57,750
123,750 115,500

A final dividend of HK5 cents (2014: HK8 cents) per share
amounting to HK$41,250,000 (2014: HK$66,000,000) in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2015 has been proposed by
the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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12. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S

EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2014: 7)

Annual Report 2015 F i

12. EEREERITEME

BN T76(2014 : 7ThI)EERE

directors and chief executive officer were as follows: FHRITEZMELT
Other emoluments
Hiv#e
Contributions
Salaries  to retirement  Discretionary
and other benefit bonus
benefits schemes payments
Fees eI RUER HiwkH Total
Be HiEA BE HERe I
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiEn T T T
Year ended 31.12.2015 BZ201551283101LEE
Executive directors HITEE
Wai Siu Kee OB 960 1,200 - 3,000 5,160
Lee Man Yan £ ¢z 960 1,194 - - 2,154
Yang Zuo Ning BIEE - 930 - - 930
Wong Yuet Ming TA#H - 804 18 - 822
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTEE
Wan Chi Keung, Aaron JP THE 139 - - - 139
Wong Kai Tung, Tony HR 139 - - - 139
Heng Victor Ja Wei iEY 139 - - - 139
2,337 4,128 18 3,000 9,483
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EI{t THERAE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (#(Z=2015F12A318ILFE)

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

12. EERERAITEMS(Z)

Other emoluments
EftiMe
Contributions
Salaries  toretirement  Discretionary
and other benefit bonus
benefits schemes payments
Fees Hek SRIRARH Rt A Total
ik EftEM TR RE%e CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx TAT ThT THT AT
Year ended 31.12.2014 BZ2014F 127310 LLFE
Executive directors HITEE
Wi Siu Kee IR 960 1,200 - 3300 5,460
Lee Man Yan (appointed as Chief BYE(R2014F8 710
Executive Officer on 1 August 2014)  ZIAERHTE) 960 1223 = = 2,183
Yang Zuo Ning BIEE - 963 - - 963
Wong Yuet Ming TA#H - 780 17 - 797
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTEF
Wan Chi Keung, Aaron JP TR 120 - - - 120
Wong Kai Tung, Tony H 120 - - - 120
Heng Victor Ja Wei IR 120 - - - 120
2,280 4,166 17 3,300 9,763

note: The share-based performance related incentive was determined in recognition
of the director's outstanding performance in development and management
of the chemical products business which has contributed a significant growth
in the Group's profit and as an incentive for his continuing commitment and
contribution to the Group in future. Other performance related incentive
payments were determined with regards to individual performance. Neither the
chief executive officer nor any of the directors waived any emoluments in both
years.
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13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 13. ERH&
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year EREESUREFM o AT EE3M
included three directors (2014: three directors), details of FE(2014: 3UEF) EHFHEHR
whose remuneration are set out in note 12 above. Details of the EXEE12 e MEE20I(2014 : 207 )&
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2014: two) highest BHEMIALTHRTRESHTIEARQF]
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of ZEBITBAE HBi&WT -

the Company are as follows:

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHETT

Salaries and other benefits e M EMEF] 2,115 1,907

Contributions to retirement benefits schemes  ERABFIFTEI 7k 18 17

2,133 1,924

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the B F T FIIBE 2 AN A Rl = H i 3E
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the EEREEAH

following bands is as follows:

2015 2014

Number of Number of

employees employees

EERE BEHE

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 T#Bi8 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
2 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (#(Z=2015F12A318ILFE)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 3% - BE R E

Furniture
fixtures and
equipment Motor  Plantand Construction
Buildings  #fi~ £E vehicles  machinery in progress Total
i 22 BT RE BERES KEIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
CosT %
At 1 January 2014 201451718 264,245 11,549 12397 1,868,765 607018 2,763974
Exchange realignment R (6416) (149) 241 (41,263) (15,150) (62,737)
Additions e - 5,384 2,360 35811 845,598 889,153
Disposals HE - (353) (1,121) (5,157) - (6,631)
Transfer g 74,820 289 - 323352 (398461) -
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A318 332,649 16,720 13877 2181508 1039005 3583759
Exchange realignment R (23,006) (780) (598) (94,201) (71,161)  (189,746)
Additions HE 21217 1911 679 16,526 665,925 706,258
Disposals & - 3) (798) (959) - (1,760)
Transfer ELEY - 110 - 56,976 (57,086) -
At 31 December 2015 20158124318 330,860 17,958 13160 2159850 1576683 4098511
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1A1H 14022 2718 3,460 492,204 - 512,404
Provided for the year AR 12,054 2,045 2,343 139,604 - 156,246
Exchange realignment B (429) (78) 491 (11,101 - (11,117
Elimination on disposal HEREH - (100) (583) (2,636) = (3,319)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F124318 25,647 4785 5711 618,071 - 654,214
Provided for the year RERE 14977 2,938 2,389 163,172 - 183,476
Exchange realignment B 5 R (1,548) (294) (299) (31,122) - (33,263)
Elimination on disposal HERHE - ) (584) (372) = (957)
At 31 December 2015 R20156 124318 39,076 7,428 7217 749,749 - 803,470
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2015 20156124318 291,784 10,530 5943 1410101 1576683 3295041
At 31 December 2014 #2014512A318 307,002 11935 8166 1563437 1039005 2929545

76



14.

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 25%
Plant and machinery 5% — 20%

The carrying values of the Group's property interests comprises
buildings on land under medium-term land use rights in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of buildings
includes an amount of HK$19,311,000 (2014: Nil) shared from a
joint operation as set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land in the
PRC under medium-term lease.

14.

15.
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W% BERBEE)

i - BRE RAREIE R A ERA
TSI FETE -

BFERHEENR 5%
BRI - B RERE 20%
RE 25%
R E N kes 500—20%

AEBYEESNEAEREETEER
FETHIME AL EREREEY)

HZE2015F12A31H81E  EF2
FHSHEBEETACEBPREMGZ
19,311,000/ 7T (2014 : &) - FHFHRN
RAE I mEMIFE29 o

AHEAREA

AEEZENHERAREFERREAZ
REIEE T -

2015 2014
HK$°'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: DITEMAT -
Non-current asset EMEBEE 122,609 78,890
Current asset BB E 3,222 1,877
125,831 80,767

Note: As at 31 December 2015, government grants in respect of acquisition of
prepaid lease payments with an aggregate amount of HK$128,560,000 (2014:
HK$101,396,000) was deducted from the carrying amount of prepaid lease
payments.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of prepaid lease

payments includes an amount of HK$2,604,000 (2014: Nil) shared
from a joint operation.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE R T

N
(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (#EZE2015F12A31HIEFE)
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16. EME
HK$'000
FAT
COST 5%
At 1 January 2014 MR2014F1A1H 48,470
Additions NE 1,391
Exchange realignment Rk (908)
At 31 December 2014 2014512 A31H 48,953
Exchange realignment M 5, B (2,052)
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12A31H 46,901

The investment property represented a piece of land acquired in
late November 2014 held for a currently undetermined future use.

Details of the Group's investment property and information about
the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

REYEEN2014F 11 AIERWEE 2 — 18
T FBEEREBRAEZBERAR -

AEEREMEN2015F12A831H2
HERAEBATESHR2ERNT

Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 3 2015
20155
12A31H
KT ZAFE
HK$'000 HK$000
THETT FET
Property with undetermined use located IR B 2 RRTEREYE
in the PRC 53,467 53,467

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December
2015 was HK$53,467,000 (2014: HK$53,136,000). The fair
value was determined by directors based on the market approach.
The market approach uses prices and other relevant information
generated by market transactions involving comparable properties.
In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use. One of the key inputs
used in valuing the investment property was the sales prices of
properties nearby the Group's investment property which ranged
from RMB2,250/M2 to RMB2,999/M2. The estimated price of
the Group's investment property is taken as RMB2,689/Mz. An
increase in the sales prices would result in an increase in fair value
measurement of the investment property and vice versa.
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MR2015F 128318 » AEBREYWE
2 N {& 553,467,000 7t (2014 :
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MHEETE c MHEFER P RBUME
B RGEEZERREMABRE
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. EREE
Technical
knowhow
4t R0 sk
HK$'000
T
THE GROUP REH
COST R
At 1 January 2014 M2014F1 /518 12,421
Currency realignment & H (233)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12H31H 12,188
Currency realignment (RIS (511)
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12H31H 11,677
AMORTISATION #y
At 1 January 2014 201451 H1H 6,139
Provided for the year RNEFEHH 1,236
Currency realignment M 5, 2 (132)
At 31 December 2014 MR2014%F12A31H 7,243
Provided for the year AR 1,206
Currency realignment I 3, 2 (342)
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12H831H 8,107
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12H31H 3,570
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12H31H 4,945

The technical knowhow was acquired from third parties. It is
amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of ten

years.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS R ER MY EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. EERRZHER
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures ~ FE ETA S 2 IRWER K 24,177 24,177
Exchange realignment B 5, B 4 2,553
Share of loss and other comprehensive FEMEE R E MR E
expense S (5,023) (2,587)
19,158 24,143
Details of each of the Group's joint ventures at the end of the BEREHR  AEENEGHEELE
reporting period are as follows: BEEIEEIIAT

Proportion of issued

Place of Class of and fully paid up

Form of establishment/ shares capital indirectly  Principal

Name of entity entity ventures incorporation  held held by the Group  activity
r&E

BELHE FREBRE BESENERTR

BEREW Rz FRAL 3 B kRid) BREALH FTEXH
2015 2014

EARBEEAMRAR  Limited incorporated  PRC Registered 40% 40%  Provision of port

BRABIKL H Capital facilities

A E R REE N

Southern Hill Company  Limited incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding
Limited BRARIKL BB gl REER

HEFRAT

Wholly owned subsidiary of
Southern Hill Company Limited:

HE BN &L A]

Ruichang Lee & Man Limited incorporated ~ PRC Registered 50% 50%  Provision of port
Logistics Company AR EIKY Ha Capital facilities
Limited &R REB N

In B XN
BRAR]
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's
material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2015 F i

op
y

EdRzHz(E)

I

ERASESEEAREALELE LR
BER - BT - L THMBEERRE
RECEMBHRRZSERRBBYT

R -

ERRBEXERAT ERRBEXEREAT
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHBT
Current assets mENEE 6,120 15,840
Non-current assets ERBNEE 79,841 87,922
Current liabilities mEAE (38,066) (47,902)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:

NEBERABSREEBIEAT ¢

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Cash and cash equivalents ReERIRELIER 5,552 15,495
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade RBVBEE
and other payables and provisions) (TBEIERNE S REMKIE
N HE) (29,940) (31,250)
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHETT
Revenue L ON 2,269 75
Loss and total comprehensive expense FABEREZEX HERE
for the year (5,811) (6,746)
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EI{t THERAE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (#(Z=2015F12A318ILFE)

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

ERRBBEEBERA T (Continued) ERFBEXERAR(E)
The above loss for the year includes the following: FRERNEBEEBEAT
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHAET
Depreciation e (4,429) (3/435)
Interest income FEWA 81 53

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to N EBEBETBERERERENTEAR
the carrying amount of the interest in ERRBEX AR A A BEXERAFZRESHAERANGS
recognised in the consolidated financial statements: MEHREK
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Net assets of HAREEXFRAA FARBEXRBRARIFEE 47,895 55,860
Proportion of the Group's ownership TEERBEERARAEE
interest in BARBEEBRAF] BIRARIEAREZ B 40% 40%
Carrying amount of the Group's AEERENERRBEE
interest in HEAREEXFRAF BRARIZEESHE 19,158 22,344
Southern Hill Company Limited MIEERAAE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Current assets MENEE 4,115 1,848
Non-current assets IEmENEE 187,555 196,163
Current liabilities nEAE (197,441) (194,413)
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 18. SELRZEE(E)
Southern Hill Company Limited (Continued) FIEFRAE(E)
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: INEEERBESEAENUT :
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Cash and cash equivalents RekFRREER 4,115 1,848
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade MBS EE
and other payables and provisions) (TRERNE S REAMHKIEA
KEE) (191,880) 183,355
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Revenue WA - =
Loss and total comprehensive expense FABBEREE
for the year X B (4,680) (101)
The above loss for the year include the following: FRERNEBRBIEAT
2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
THET T
Depreciation and amortisation PrEe K is (36) 37
Interest income FEMA 1 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS ER AR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (#(Z=2015F12A318ILFE)

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 18. SELRZEE(E)
Southern Hill Company Limited (Continued) FIEFRDE (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the BBV BENERERENEIES
carrying amount of the interest in Southern Hill Company Limited FRAT 2 BRE SRR NGRS I SRR

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
FEx FHBT
Net (liabilities) assets of Southern Hill HIEFRARF(AE)EE
Company Limited (5,771) 3,598
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest ~ RN&EEFHEREIEERARHEEE
in Southern Hill Company Limited k= ) 50% 50%
(2,886) 1,799
Unrecognised share of loss for the year KRS A FE(L E1E 2,886 -
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in REERENMEEFRATZ
Southern Hill Company Limited FRESHE - 1,799
2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
The unrecognised share of loss of RERFARMLEAEEEER
a joint venture for the year 2,886 -
Cumulative share of loss of a joint venture BRI A EREERE 2,886 -
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19.

20.
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OTHER DEPOSITS 19. HftaT&
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Deposits paid for acquisition of BERTLEEZEMNIT 2
an intangible asset 99,387 36,187
Other deposit Hibal® - 2,000
99,387 38,197
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 20. fTE€mMT R
Current Non-current
TE IERE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FHET FiT
Derivative financial assets PTHESREE
— net settlement —FEREE
Derivative under BREHETEARZ
hedge accounting $TETH
Interest rate swap (Note ii) FEI=ER (B 22ii) - = - 31
Derivatives not under WIHRE G ENE
hedge accounting ZUTETHR
Foreign currency forward SN SEERE K (A AL
contracts (Note i) - 1,269 - -
- 1,269 - 31
Derivative financial liabilities PTESRAE
— net settlement —FREEE
Derivatives under REHETHEARZ
hedge accounting PTETAR
Interest rate swaps (Note i) A S HA (o 2#ii) - (460) (184) (388)
Derivatives not under W IERE P EARR
hedge accounting ZITETIAR
Interest rate swap F =5 (42) - - -
Foreign currency forward HNEEERE K (FYati)
contract (Note 1) - (4,161) - -
(42) (4,621) (184) (388)
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e R R M EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (#EZE2015F12A31HIEFE)

20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments are calculated
using discounted cash flow analysis based on the applicable yield
curves of interest rates and forward rates.

The derivative financial instruments are denominated in US and HK
dollars which are not the functional currency of the relevant group
entity.

Notes:
() Foreign currency forward contracts — not under hedge accounting

As at 31 December 2014, the amount represented the fair value of foreign
currency forward contracts held by the Group with terms stated as follows:

20.

TEemMI A
TESMTAZAFEDREMRRES

TEAW + SEMEIR 2 R
RYERRETEE o

PTESRMTAERUNEBEBREE Y
eI B TTEHE -

Bt -
(i) SMNEEMERN - FEERET

M2014F 128310 * e BEAEEFFZ
INESSRERA M) 2 AT EREHEFIAT ¢

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate
L] A E=

Buy EUR8,400,000 3032015 EUR1:USD1.2805

2 A\ 78,400,000 1ERTT © 1.280527T
Buy RMB 112,680,000 31.3.2015 USD1:RMB6.3175

B AAR®112,680,000 17T - ARK63175
Sell RMB112,680,000 31.3.2015 USD1:RMB6.2600
JEH AR 112,680,000 15%7T « AR%6.2600

All foreign currency forward contracts were settled during the year ended 31
December 2015.

(ii) Interest rate swaps - (not) under hedging accounting

The Group uses interest rate swaps to minimise its exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk of certain of its variable-rate US dollars and HK dollars bank
borrowings (see note 27) by swapping a proportion of the variable-rate bank
borrowings from variable interest rates to fixed interest rates. The interest rate
swaps and the corresponding bank borrowings have substantially the same
terms and the directors of the Company consider that the interest rate swaps
are highly effective hedging instruments. Major terms of the interest rate swaps

RBZE2015F12A318ILFE - FiAINER
HENBWEE -

(i) FIREH - REHEET

AEERAF RS - BBIEHHFERT
EBERFEMNETREXETCHE  BHRE
BIRZEETRABTRITERAEREZRE
MEFIRER(RHE27) o FIRiE 8 kAR
ZIRITEERBHEBHERER AARE

REAETEIFHTFEREREHHATE « B
2015%F 12 A31 B F =8 81H) = 2 1R E 51 40

outstanding at 31 December 2015 are set out below: ™ ¢

Notional amount Interest rate swap

L] F ==

1 contract with HK$300,000,000 From HIBOR + 2.7% to fixed rate of 3.4%
119300,000,000/ 7T & %Y AEBRITRERE+2.7%EHETF £3.4%

1 contract with US$15,000,000 From LIBOR + 1.75% to fixed rate of 2.83%
114 15,000,000 T4 #) R BERITRIZER B+1.75%F BiZ= £ £.2.83%

The bank borrowing related to the contract with US$15,000,000 was early
repaid during the year ended 31 December 2015 and the interest rate swap
was not considered a hedging instrument.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 20. FTEESRT A/
Notes: (Continued) Mt ()
(ii) Interest rate swaps - under hedging accounting (Continued) (i) RIBEH-REHEET(E)

Major terms of the interest rate swaps outstanding at 31 December 2014 were as

MR2014F 12 A31 BB 2 FX2 B+ E 50

below: /i
Notional amount Interest rate swap

BetE TR

1 contract with HK$300,000,000 From HIBOR + 2.7% to fixed rate of 3.4%
114300,000,000# 4 4) HEBRITRIFER E4+2.7%018 iZE F 8.3.4%
1 contract with US$38,000,000 From LIBOR + 2% to fixed rate of 2.93%
11938,000,000E T & #) AR BERTTRIZE T B +20%tE B E TE £.2.93%
1 contract with US$15,000,000 From LIBOR + 1.75% to fixed rate of 2.83%
119 15,000,000 T4 4) B ZUERTTRIEEHT B+1.7500i% i £ 5.2.83%
1 contract with HK$200,000,000 From HIBOR to fixed rate of 0.8%
119200,000,0007# 04 4 HEBIRITREREZE L0.8%

The above contracts will mature within one to two (2014: one to three)
years from the end of the reporting period which match with the tenor of the
corresponding bank borrowings.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, net adjustment of HK$632,000
(2014: HK$2,136,000) was credited in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and is expected to be released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income at various dates
in line with the interest schedule of the corresponding bank borrowings in the
coming one to two (2014: one to three) years. A loss from fair value changes
of HK$1,847,000 (2014: HK$4,346,000) relating to interest incurred was
recognised in profit or loss (note 9).

AR REBRRIZE2(2014F - 123)
FREE - THFEBERITERAR »

201512 A31BFR » AR FFE632,000%8
JL(20144F : 2,136,000/ 7T ) E R H A 2 FUL
AR KA ER P RETEIE - BHER R
R—EZF(2014F : —E=F)EABER
TEEZFRZNHRTRB FEALGERE
mRkEMEEEEE - BAEEFSEEZ
NP EZEES 2 E5181,847,00087L(2014
F ¢ 4,346,000 L) ER Bz RPIER (M=%
9)°

INVENTORIES 21. &8
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Raw materials and consumables FEA R K FER @ 123,889 88,455
Work in progress FE il & 12,044 24,715
Finished goods B am 70,782 52,220
206,715 165,390
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(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (#EZE2015F12A31HIEFE)

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B 5 RHEMKIE

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHIT

Trade receivables FEUE S8R 45,543 33,220
Bills receivables B EE 86,779 113,594
132,322 146,814

Prepayments TR 41,887 107,650
Deposits to suppliers At ERRT & 6,412 40,151
Value-added tax receivables FEWIE(E L IE 193,779 178,566
Other receivables Hfh U R 4,806 1,812
Total trade and other receivables FEWE 5 R EAMRIEAFT 379,206 474,993

The aged analysis of trade and bills receivables based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

RUEZERARZENRERARLRER
BZBREDITAT

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THETT

Not exceeding 30 days THEE3I0R 102,176 120,217
31-60 days 31260K 17,469 20,373
61-90 days 61E90K 5,219 4,427
91-120 days 91E120K 3,292 1,797
Over 120 days 120K £ 4,166 -
132,322 146,814

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality by investigating its historical
credit record and then defines its credit limit. Trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired are considered to be recovered
based on historical experience.

The Group generally allows its trade customers a credit period
ranged from 7 to 60 days. During the years ended 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014, no allowance for doubtful debts
was provided. The Group generally makes provision against debts
which are considered as not recoverable. At the end of both
reporting periods, no trade receivables was past due.

As at 31 December 2015, all trade and bills receivables aged over
60 days are bills receivables and they are not past due.
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23.

24.

LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT DUE FROM A
JOINT VENTURE

The loan to a joint venture represented shareholder’s loan to
Southern Hill Company Limited. As at 31 December 2015, the
amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one
year after the reporting period. The loan is denominated in US
dollars which is a currency other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entity.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the amount due from a
joint venture represented the loan to HHARBEEBR A A for
construction of a pier. As at 31 December 2014, the amount was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable in October 2015. During
2015, the loan agreement was renewed and the loan is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable in October 2016.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short
term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The deposits carry prevailing market interest rates which range from
0.3% to 5.15% (2014: 0.28% to 5.15%) per annum.

The following amounts of bank and cash are denominated in the
foreign currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities.

23.

24.
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BELRZAR SELRZEBHR®R
]

AEPEZEFERRATEHERSRA
RIZER - R2015F 128318 ' 5
RBEAHEEM  NFERARERE
o EEEMABENIENRREERE
—FREE - ANEBUBEBEEREEY
BB AN EMEETTEHE -

R2015FE &2014F12A31H @ &0
EVREBFEERFLTEARBEE
BRARERIEEZEE A - K2014
FI12A31H - EEFEAEEF -,
B RBR2015F10AEE - 20154
W HZERBEEN L REBFIE
AEEE - T5rEBRER2016F10AE
= ©°

BITRBRRA®

BTGB IBESBREAEEFEZES
MRAA3EA S R3ME AR 2 G H
IRITHER - ZEFRIETHEFBEE0.3%
Z5.15%(2014:0.28%%E5.15%) 5t 2 °

ATRIT LA EHRGAREEE TR
ZNREEE AN EH LR -

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

HK dollars BIT 4,133 1,099
US dollars ETT 7,182 7,402
11,315 8,501
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e R R M EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015)

(BZE2015F12A31HILFE)

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25.

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding
for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The credit period obtained

for trade purchases is 7 to 45 days.

Included in trade and other payables is trade payable of
HK$80,707,000 (2014: HK$78,463,000). The aged analysis of
trade payables based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting

FEM RS RAEMRIEA

ENESMEMKATEBREZEER
RFFBRNXKAZARNRE - EHBEE

ZHREREI AT E45K o

ENESREMFRBEREEMNESER
/480,707,000 7t (2014 : 78,463,000
BIT) RN E SR RE R RIRER

period is as follows: BRI T
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Not exceeding 30 days TiEE30KR 56,757 50,439
31-60 days 31260K 9,016 7,598
61-90 days 61E90K 3,188 9,031
Over 90 days 90RIA = 11,746 11,395
80,707 78,463
Receipt in advance L 41,122 44,553
Construction payable and accruals Bt TRERKTERE R 153,135 250,935
Value-added tax accruals FERT BRI TR 17,126 26,159
Other payables H A FEAT R 57,960 25,154
Other accruals HEMERER 17,342 14,719
Total trade and other payables e E 5 R EAMFRIAEET 367,392 439,983

The balance of construction costs payable and accruals comprises
non-current construction costs payables of HK$65,506,000 (2014:
Nil). Other accruals are classified as current liabilities.
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25.

26.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

The following amounts of trade and other payables are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities.
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25. BARHREMBRE(E)

AT A8 5 8RR R B 5 IR LA MR
SEERNINGEER MM EE LR -

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

HK dollars BT 174 484

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

26. FEFRAELATIRIE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited BXGERBR AT

(“Lee & Man Paper”) (TEBEH D) 3,771 4,047

Hong Kong Baptist University Investment BEEREREREBRAA
Limited (“HKBUI") (TBAEZRIEE]D 22 -
3,793 4,047

Lee & Man Paper is beneficially owned and controlled by Mr. Lee
Wan Keung, the controlling shareholder of the Company’s ultimate
holding company, Fortune Star. The amount represents a trade
balance which is unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on
demand and aged within 90 days.

A subsidiary of the Group is a joint operator of HKBUI which
constitutes a joint operation of a research center located in
Changshu, the PRC. The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing,
repayable on demand and aged within 60 days.
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e R R M EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

27. BANK BORROWINGS 27. S|ITHER
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Unsecured bank loans EIERIRITER 1,861,834 1,939,042
Carrying amount repayable: HEERFREE
Within one year —F RN 611,444 704,079
More than one year, B —FETEEHmF
but not exceeding two years 635,345 589,697
More than two years but not BEMFEETBEAF
more than five years 615,045 639,650
1,861,834 1,933,426
Carrying amount of bank loans that are MBEHRER—FAEER
repayable within one year from the BBRIBER 2RERKR 2
end of the reporting period and contain RITEREREE
a repayment on demand clause - 5616
1,861,834 1,939,042
Less: Amounts due within one year W —FARENSERREAE
shown under current liabilities THIR (611,444) (709,695)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ~ RAIEREN A E TR 1,250,390 1,229,347
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had available banking facilities R2015F 12 831H * AEBEAIH 2
of approximately HK$3,630,955,000 (2014: HK$2,277,039,000) iR 17 5 A 12 B 88 % 3,630,955,000

of which HK$2,740,368,000 (2014: HK$1,939,042,000) was

utilised.

The exposure of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the

ot (2014 :

2,277,039,000 #& JT ) -
H 1 2,740,368,000 & 7T ( 2014 :
1,939,042,000/8 70 ) B EN A °

AEEZBEEMNRERRAOBHE W

contractual maturity dates are as follows: N
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Fixed-rate borrowings: Bl TE MR B
Within one year —FA 56,048 95,385
In more than one year but not more than B —FETEEMF
two years - 23,846
56,048 119,231
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27. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, all of the Group's remaining

borrowings carried interest at variable rates.

The ranges of effective interest rates per annum on the Group's

borrowings are as follows:

Annual Report 2015 F 3

7. BITERE)

RBEHR - REB AR TRITHER

BEEEE

REBERERFNRGEEMT

2015 2014
Effective interest rate: BERF=
Fixed-rate borrowings RS =y 3.68% 3.68%
Variable-rate borrowings FENNEAE K 1.66% to 1.60% to
2.88% over 2.88% over
HIBOR or HIBOR or
LIBOR LIBOR
BERBTRIE BHERTRZE
FERMH  HELBH
RITRIZE RITRIZE
FEM1.66% HFENN1.60%
£2.88% £2.88%

The following amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group

REBZRITIEFIAEREERES
BLASN B EERZDNT

entities.
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
US dollars ETT 171,871 605,889
HK dollars BIT 1,633,915 1,300,000
Euro BT - 33,153
1,805,786 1,939,042
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e ISR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (#(Z=2015F12A318ILFE)

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B&&F
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
EERDHUE K
HK$'000
FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: SREMBECIAT L ERK -
Authorised: S
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and R2014F1A18 « 2014F 12318 K&
31 December 2015 2015%12H31H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BIRBR
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and R2014F1A18 20148128318 Kk
31 December 2015 2015F12A31H 825,000,000 82,500
There was no movement in the Company’s share capital for both AT Z R %R B E AN iR E o
years.
29. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT OPERATION 29. AEEBRER

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group acquired
500% shareholding of HKBUI which constitutes a joint operation of a
research center located in Changshu, the PRC.

At 31 December 2015, the aggregate amounts of assets and
expenses recognised in the consolidated financial statements

REZE2015F12A31HIEFE » K&
BIUHE T B8R RIRE 500 » FA
B AR — EfF TR O A S ¥ -

MR2015F 128310 » KEERBEBEAS
BEBESESREVERERERNE

relating to the Group's interests in this joint operation are as follows: ENERESENT
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Property L7ES 19,311 -
Prepaid lease payment TENHEERIE 2,604 -
21,915 —
Expenses ZH 1,512 -
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The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 December 2001 for the
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible persons.
The Scheme had a term of 10 years from its adoption and therefore
it expired on 13 December 2010. On 23 April 2010, share options
with a market value of HK$163,430,000 were granted and the
provision of the Scheme shall remain in full force and the holder
of all options granted under the Scheme prior to such termination
shall be entitled to exercise the outstanding options pursuant to the
terms of the Scheme until expiry of the said options.

Under the Scheme, the Company's board of directors could at their
discretion grant options to (i) any director, employee or consultant
of the Company or a company in which the Company holds an
equity interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (ii)
any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include any
director, employee or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate;
or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee
or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate; or (iv) any customer,
supplier or adviser as may be determined by the directors of the
Company from time to time to subscribe for the shares of the
Company.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options might be granted under the Scheme was not
to exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company any
point in time. The maximum number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options might be granted to any individual in any
12-month period was not to exceed 1% of shares of the Company
in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company was obtained in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

Options could be exercised during such period (including the
minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before it
could be exercised) as determined by the directors of the Company
(which shall be less than ten years from the date of issue of the
relevant option). Options could be granted without initial payment.
The exercise price was equal to the highest of (i) nominal value of
the shares of the Company; (ii) the closing price per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the
grant of the options; and (iii) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
options.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EI{t THERAE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mE SRR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2015)

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

(BZE2015F12A31HILFE)

No options were granted or exercised under the scheme during
both years and all options lapsed on 22 April 2015.

The following table discloses movements of the Company's share
options during the year ended 31 December, 2015:

30. RERRfERtEI(E)

MEFERSEBREETE THEDR
AT - FTAEREN 201554 H22H

R o

HZE2015F12A31BIEFERN » AR
RIBREEH 25T

Number of share options
BREHE
Granted/
exercised/
lapsed/
Outstanding  cancelled/ Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise at during at during at
Director Date of grant price  Exercisable period 1.1.2014 the year 1.1.2015 theyear  31.12.2015
R20145F FR R2015% FR R2015%
118 B3/ 118 ®E/f71E/  12A31R
= RiHAH e e HRTE  RRBH HRTE  RRBH i R AT
HK$
BT
Lee Man Yan 2342010 6.69  234.2011-224.2015 27,500,000 - 27,500,000 (27,500,000) =
YR 2342010 6.69  23.4.2012-22.4.2015 27,500,000 - 27,500,000 (27,500,000) =
2342010 6.69  23.4.2013-22.4.2015 27,500,000 - 27,500,000 (27,500,000) =
Total Fat 82,500,000 - 82,500,000 (82,500,000) =
Bercsable atthe  RERATT(E
end of the year 82,500,000 -
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The options granted on 23 April 2010 may be exercised in
accordance with the following terms:

®

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

up to one-third of the options (i.e. options for an aggregate of
27,500,000 shares) will be exercisable from 23 April 2011 to
22 April 2015 (both dates inclusive) if the consolidated net
profit after taxation of the Group (“Net Profit") for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010 equals or exceeds 115% of
the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2009;

up to two-thirds of the options (i.e. options for an aggregate
of 55,000,000 shares) will be exercisable from 23 April 2012
to 22 April 2015 (both dates inclusive) if the Net Profit for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 equals or exceeds
130% of the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31
December 2009;

all of the options (i.e. options for an aggregate of 82,500,000
shares) will be exercisable from 23 April 2013 to 22 April
2015 (both dates inclusive) if the Net Profit for the financial
year ended 31 December 2012 equals or exceeds 145% of
the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2009;

to the extent any options have not become exercisable by
23 April 2014 (i.e. options for an aggregate of 82,500,000
shares), they will be exercisable from 23 April 2014 to 22 April
2015 (both dates inclusive) if the Net Profit for the financial
year ended 31 December 2013 equals or exceeds 160% of
the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31 December 20009.

The option shall lapse if the options holder by reason of voluntary
resignation or by termination of his employment in accordance with
the termination provisions of his contract of employment.

At 31 December 2015, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme represented 10% (2014: 10%) of the issued share capital
at that date.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS R ER MY EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

30 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 30. fEBEiERtEICE)

The total fair value of the share options granted under the Scheme
on 23 April 2010 is approximately HK$163,430,000, calculated
using the Binomial Model (the “Model"). The inputs into the Model
and the estimated fair value of the share options are as follows:

R2010F4 A23B AR R ERE 2 A F
E{E %) 5163,430,000/8 7T » JhEH =
HABR ([RE ) ET - HAREHAK
BRBRE G ATFEER2YIT ¢

Share options Share options Share options

with an with an with an

exercisable exercisable exercisable

period from  period from  period from

BRE BRE BREZ

THEHR TR TR

23.4.2011 23.4.2012 23.4.2013

to £ to £ to £

22.4.2015 22.4.2015 22.4.2015

Share price at date of grant REL BEIRE HK$6.69 HK$6.69 HK$6.69
6.6975 7T 6.6978 7T 6.69/ 7T

Exercise price 111E(E HK$6.69 HK$6.69 HK$6.69
6.6975 7T 6.69787T 6.69787T

Expected volatility FEER IR 53.62% 53.62% 53.62%
per annum per annum per annum

B53.6200  BE5362%  BF53.62%

Expected life of share options FERETREF 5 years 5 years 5 years
5% 54 5%

Expected dividend yield RS X 4.75% 4.75% 4.75%
Risk-free rate R R 2.03% 2.03% 2.03%
Fair value of share option -1 AN HK$1.78 HK$2.02 HK$2.15
1.78/87T 20277 2.15% 7T

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of share price over the previous five years. The expected life used
in the Model has been adjusted, based on management's best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

The risk free interest rate was estimated based on the yield of the
5-year exchange fund note issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority as of the grant date.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.
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31.

OPERATING LEASES

Annual Report 2015 F 3

1. #EEHEH

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Minimum lease payments paid under FABANAEYELETELY
operating leases in respect of ZEERERK
office premises during the year 2,370 102

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

MR|EER - NEBE AT AIREHA R
KREEHEENREDHNT -

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year —F A 902 113
In the second to fifth year inclusive FTEERF 100 -
1,002 113

Included in the commitments above, HK$200,000 (2014:
HK$107,000) is related to commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases with Lee & Man
Paper (note 35).

The commitments for operating lease payments represent rentals
payable by the Group for office properties. Leases are negotiated for
an average term of one year (2014: one year). Rentals are based
on the terms specified in the lease agreements.

929

T bt - BRIE SR FTET SR A]
BHEEEROZARRERBENZA
200,000 7T (20144 : 107,000/ 7T )
(PftsE35) o

REHENFTAEREARERERAE
MERNzES - HEZFIHEHPR—
F(2014% : — %) B HRBEHEER
BN ZIEE RRETE ©



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. FEXEIE
2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not ERTKBERNERE MR T
provided in the consolidated financial B AR
statements in respect of the acquisition of REBE
— property, plant and equipment —WE - BERR& 189,935 426,744
— intangible asset —E\EE 8,976 87,819
198,911 514,563
33. OTHER COMMITMENT 33. Hfthakiz

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contractual
commitments for acquisition of land use rights of HK$2,395,000
(2014: HK$31,575,000). It also had commitments for granting
shareholder’s loan of HK$28,635,000 (2014: HK$32,398,000)
to Southern Hill Company Limited to cover the initial costs and
expenses of undertaking the pier construction in Jiangxi to date.

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates the Mandatory Provided Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes monthly
the lower of HK$1,500 or 5% of the relevant monthly payroll costs
to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
government of the PRC. The PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make
the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$15,702,000 (2014:

HK$9,972,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes
by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.
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34.

RIEHR - NEBEFT4IA2,395,000
BT (20144 : 31,575,000/ 7T) BAL
o A o 1% IR 4R T 28,635,000
TT(20144F : 32,398,000/ T) (IR E
RTEERRARBIEAREEZTIAR
BEESZHEIKARI L -

RAEFIEE
SUE SRET 8

AEERMAGERMNERRY AR
Bestdl([BEestE]) - BESFE
REERAEBEZEEDRFA XM
HEEAZES - AEE BB HX
1,500/ LA B8 A Z AR AN 2 5% (JA
BIEERE) - MiEE ZHRLLXER -

AEEZHENRBARIZEEHRTH
HFE R BERARBHNETEIZKE -
ZET BN E AR AT & T
B AR AR R BIHR - AR @S
BRRKENFE CEERELIEELZ

#HAR o

REFAFERN  AEBEELFTEF
B & 1+ £ 788 4 15,702,000/8 7T (2014
F :9,972,00087L)  REACDEER
FIER o



Apart from the balances with related parties as set out in notes 23
and 26, the Group had significant transactions with related parties
during the year as follows:

Name of related party
BELER

Connected parties
BEAL

Lee & Man Paper
EGER

Lee & Man Management
Company Limited
BYEEFRAR]

Except for the related party transactions and balances described
above, the Group has entered into a joint venture arrangement
with Lee & Man Paper. Details of the joint venture and the other

Relationship
e

A company beneficially
owned and controlled
by Mr. Lee Wan Keung

BEEREEERES
e /NS

A company beneficially
owned and controlled
by Mr. Lee Wan Keung

HPEREEERER
KNl z 7]

Nature of transactions

RHME

Electricity and steam fee paid

BERNEERERE

Fuel expense paid

[RERF A EE=

Rental expense paid

BEfRHEEEA

Sales of chemical products

HELTIEM

Electricity and steam fee
received

EWBERERE

Rental income received

BYAES A

Purchase of raw materials

BB R K

Acquisition of land

BETH

Management consultant fee
paid
BEEEERE

Annual Report 2015 F 3

BrBsE23 26 FThI B 2 B i@ A T 455k
Hh o REBERBALTRFERATETZ
BEARZIAT :

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
73,307 76,161
301 396
1,612 1,919
14,208 13,175
36,555 35,647
1,420 1,936
725 451
8,340 =
687 576

B £ Pt BE A X 5 RAERRSN - AR
SEEEXERTYAECERE -/
LBREMEELET HME AR

commitment to the joint venture are set out in notes 23 and 33 B RBIE I 23 %33 ©

respectively.
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35.

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 35. BEXSRER(Z)

(CONTINUED)
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EENEMFTEEEENERFR 2N
management during the year was as follows: ST :
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Short-term employee benefits FREIE THRA 14,194 13,682
Post-employment benefits RIRAE R 36 34
14,230 13,716
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 36. TEEHHRSH
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's acquisition FR G -BEVE BREER
of property, plant and equipment of HK$352,648,000 (2014: A 352,648,000 % T ( 2014 4
HK$347,133,000) was settled through transfer of deposits paid in 347,133,000/ 70) A FERE AT
the prior years. SEAEEE -
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 37. A FXEMELAT
COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December )\5/*\3591 5;%1%29,1 i¢12ﬂ 3TRARAELZ
2015 and 2014 are as follows: FTEMBRABFENT :

Nominal value of issued

Place of and fully paid share Attributable
Name of subsidiary incorporation capital/paid-in capital equity interest Principal activities*
BRIRARRAERE
WELARER TR L i 2 BARA Frib s TEXB
2015 2014
Changshu Yunhong Realty Limited ~ PRC Paid-in capital - 100% 100%  Property holding
EREREEERATA H RMB120,000,000 RENE
(S
AR#120,000,0007C
High Sky Chemicals Limited Labuan, Malaysia ~ Ordinary share - 100% 100%  Trading of chemical products
MEE - BRAZ  USEI0000 tIERES
Ealiee
10,000% 7T
Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Limited ~ PRC Paid-in capital - 100% 100%  Manufacture and sales of
("Jiangsu L&M") (note) F US$78,750,000 industrial chemical products
IHEIERAR EaRA- HERBEIXLIER
(Wit) 78,750,000% 7T
Jiangxi Lee & Man Chemical Limited ~ PRC Paid-in capital - 100% 100%  Manufacture and sales of
(note) H US$53,702,394 and industrial chemical products
TREXCTARARHE) RVB1,314,325,092 EERBETRLIER
ESRA-
53,702394F LRk

AR#1,314,325,0927C

Lee & Man (International) Investment  Hong Kong Ordinary shares — 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited BE HK$100 REER
BN (B REERLA LER-
10087
Lee & Man Chemical Investment British Virgin Islands ~ Shares — 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited RERKES US$1 RAER
Bt IREERAA] fin—
[EYH
* The principal activities were carried out in the PRC and Hong Kong. + FEEBHEFRBRRES -
note: These companies are registered in the form of wholly-owned foreign investment Kiat :  ZEARIIINEBECER A M -
enterprise.
Only Lee & Man Chemical Investment Limited was directly held by AABEY(CIREERATREAARDQT
the Company. HERE -
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317.

38.

(BZE2015F12A31HILFE)

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year, or at any time during the year.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank loans disclosed in note 27, net of bank balances
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
as well as issue of new debts.
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39a. Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets TRHEE
Loans and receivables (including cash

and cash equivalents) ReFMEER)
Fair value through profit or loss NHERTAER
— derivative financial instruments —{TEERmI A

Derivative under hedge accounting

Financial liabilities THEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RESE A SR A S
Fair value through profit or loss ANFHEFARR

— derivative financial instruments —$THESRTA

Derivatives under hedge accounting

39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, loan to a joint venture, amount due from
a joint venture, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, bank borrowings, amounts due to related companies
and derivative financial instruments. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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39a. £RIT BRI

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT TAT
509,177 855,088
- 1,269

- 31

2,112,671 2,279,416

42 4,161
184 848

39b. BRI EE B ERBE

AEECZFESHTARRERKE
SREMKIE AETEER A
B EWGIE - RITEB KR
® - ENESRHEMKIE - |RITHE
Mo EMBEARRIERITES
TE -ZEemI AFBERERN
AR o ZESRIT AEERR
BEMEEAR(EEERRFER
%) EERBREREBESRER °
T 3CEL PN A a] B AR R R B 2 R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS R ER MY EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. @MIA(E)

39b. IR EERBEREE(E)

39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk mE R
() Currency risk () EEREE

The Group mainly operated in the PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arose from fluctuations of
foreign currencies, including HK dollars and US dollars
against the functional currency of the relevant group
entities. Material transactions and balances that are not
denominated in the functional currency of the relevant
entities give rise to foreign currency exposure as follows:

(i) US dollars — in terms of loan to a joint venture, bank
balances and cash, bank borrowings and derivative
financial instruments.

(i) HK dollars — in terms of bank balances and cash,

trade and other payables, bank borrowings and

derivative financial instruments.

Exchange rate fluctuations and market trend have
always been the concern of the Group. Management
will monitor the foreign currency exposure closely and
consider the use of hedging instruments when the need
arises.

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and
monetary liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount
of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities

FEREENAREE LR
A B M (IR
TR iR EEEE
T i R BES FREAE © 3
SRR S S E Y
AR5 RAEHEE 2 NS AR
T

() EL-—Retr¥zE
o RITHEBRNMIRE - R
TERRITEERTA -

BT - RNIRITEGLE
T ENESREMK
18 - IRITERMITES R

(ii)

ITH-
AREE—m B EEREE) KT
S8 - EEESHY)EILI
SERBRIERRAYP T A -

FTENNE T HEER MR

&

REIREHR - AR EER AR
BERDEEBAINZ ERRR

denominated in currencies other than the functional HeRmEENSRAE  HER
currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: HENT :
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Assets BE
HK dollars BT 11,031 1,079
US dollars ETT 100,436 97,958
Liabilities aE
HK dollars BIT 1,634,111 1,419,989
US dollars = 171,871 486,384
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39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 39b. B AEKREEBERBK(E)

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) s EEE (&)
() Currency risk (Continued) () EkERkE)

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and
monetary liabilities (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
appreciation and depreciation in the functional currency
of the relevant group entities (i.e. RMB and HK dollars)
against the above foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity
rate and represents management'’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis adjusts their translation at the
period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
strengthening of the functional currency of the relevant
group entities against the above foreign currencies would
give rise to the following impact to post-tax profit for the
year and vice versa.

Monetary assets and liabilities:
Increase on post-tax profit for the year
— HK dollars
— US dollars

—BTT
-7

Derivative financial instruments

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
entered into several foreign currency forward contracts
with banks to reduce its exposure to currency risk of US$
against RMB and Euro against US$. The structured foreign
currency forward contract and foreign currency forward
contracts are not accounted for under hedge accounting.
The Group is required to estimate the fair value of the
derivative financial statements at the end of the reporting
period, which therefore exposed the Group to foreign
currency risk.

As at the year ended 31 December 2015, all foreign
currency forward contracts were settled.
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2015 2014
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TERT THET
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS R ER MY EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

0)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Structured foreign currency forward contracts and foreign
currency forward contracts — not under hedge accounting

If the exchange rates of US$ against RMB and Euro
against US$ had been 5% higher/lower while all other
input variables of the valuation models were held
constant, the Group's post-tax profit would increase
(decrease) as follows:

39. &@MTR(ZE)

39b. I AR EE B BEREE(E)

e mER (&)

B ER(E)
PTETHTAE)

ERBIEINEEIS D RINEE
HIE K — R Est

MEXTHEARE KRBT
ETHRBEER EA TR
5% - MG EER 2 A H A
AERABRSTE  BIXK
2 BR 18 e MG 0 O A ) an
T s

Increase (decrease)
in post-tax profit

BRBE R I8 b0 R 2>)

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Higher by 5% 2 Hn5%
Derivative financial instruments PTESBIA - 3,307
Lower by 5% 5%
Derivative financial instrument PTHESHMIA - (3,307)

Interest rate risk
Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities

The Group's cash flow interest rate risks mainly relate
to its variable rate borrowings (see note 27 for details
of these borrowings). It is the Group's policy to keep its
borrowings at fixed interest rate so as to minimise the
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's bank balances
also have exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due to
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on
bank balances.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR and
LIBOR arising from the Group's HK dollars and US dollars
denominated borrowings.
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39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period.
For variable rate bank borrowings, to the extent that
they are not hedged by effective instruments, and
bank balances, the analysis is prepared assuming the
stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the
financial year and held constant throughout both years
in the case of instruments that have floating rates. 10
(2014: 10) basis point and 50 (2014: 50) basis point
increase or decrease are used by the management for
the assessment of the possible change in interest rates of
variable rate bank balances and variable rate borrowings,
respectively.

If interest rates had been 10 basis point higher or lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
would increase or decrease by HK$213,000 (2014:
HK$20,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bank
balances.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point higher or lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
would decrease or increase by HK$8,560,000 (2014:
HK$6,893,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.
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39b. AR EEBERBEK(E)

B R (&)

(ii)

R BRER(E)
T BEERREE)
SR

ARSI D AT RAR B IELT A
SR T ARARES BIR 2 F R
EBREE - 37 B BITE IR
a hlﬂﬁLﬁﬂIﬂ&ﬁ
TRGETE R - DITHIRE
m#W%igﬁ%ﬁaﬁﬁ%
FIBAZ BEW R FEAREF T
B(BLLFBAEFE 2T
E)M#RE - 10(20144F : 10)
HE R 50(2014% : 50) &2
RER R B IR EVED B2 E
FIEMIRITIF 3 B RE EF
KEF A REME R E A o

i R 2= 38 sk m A 10 & 2h B
Frg H fh o] B AR EFTE
BIREBEZE2015912 831
B L FE 2B 1E % T A1
hnskm 4 213,000% T (2014
£ :20,00087T) * WTHER
M2 SIRIT SR M S A
SEEEFRER

fis 71 R 12 hnskos A 50EE 2 B
FrE b o] AR GEFTE
BIREBEZ2015%12 A31
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS R ER MY EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

During the year, the Group entered into several interest
rate swap contracts with banks to reduce its exposure to
interest rate risk in relation to variable rate borrowings (see
note 27 for details of these borrowings). At 31 December
2015, one outstanding interest rate swap is accounted
for under hedge accounting and another one is not under
hedge accounting. The Group is required to estimate the
fair value of the interest rate swap contracts at the end of
the reporting period, which therefore exposed the Group
to interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity

If forward interest rates had been 50 (2014: 50) basis
points higher and all other variable were held constant,
the Group's post-tax profit and equity would increase as
follows and vice versa:

39. &@MTR(ZE)

37b. I EREEEERKE(E)

B R (E)

(i) FERBERE)

PTEETHTA

FR - AEBEBRIRTII VS
D F Ei2 A K UK A E R
FIRBBMES 2 F EE R
(ZEBHREFBRME27) -
R2015F 12 A31H » —1p
F| 8 R R & 5 R HIBR
ma—MmEEEHHEF 5
B - AEBANREHRRES
RERE A ¥ 2 F S R b AR e
RZENEEPREH 2 ATE
{EHfhET ©

fiw 3= HA R =42 J150(20144F -
SO)EZAmMBEHMAIEAX
T BIAREEZBRFE
wmA RSB mMIn T RZ

Increase
in post-tax Increase
profit in equity
B & E R 18 b0 REZE1E N
HK$'000 HK$'000
TATT TATT
At 31 December 2015 2015512 H31H 6 656
At 31 December 2014 2014512 A31H - 2,779
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39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group is also exposed
to concentration of credit risk as a substantial portion of its
sales is generated from a limited number of customers. At
31 December 2015, the top five customers of the Group
accounted for about 42% (2014: 239%) of the Group's trade
receivables. The Group also granted loan and advance to a
joint venture (note 23). In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the management
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and loan/advance to a joint venture at the end of reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR
(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. #MIR(Z)

39b. AR EEBERBEK(E)

39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the Group's liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
The Group also has unutilised banking facilities (note 27) of
approximately HK$890,587,000 (2014: HK$337,997,000)
to meet its short-term working capital requirements. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent the interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net
cash (inflows) and outflows on derivative financial instruments
that settle on a net basis. When the amount payable is not
fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference
to the projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves
existing at the end of the reporting period. The liquidity analysis
for the Group's derivative financial instruments are prepared
based on the contractual maturities as the management
consider that the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. @I RE)
39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 39b. AR EEBERBEK(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TmEELERE(E)
Weighted
average Total
effective  On demand Over undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  or0-30days  31-60 days  61-90days 91-365 days 365days  cash flows amount

LS EZfE fitil St}

METIH 0-30% 31-60% 61-90% 91-365% 365K BemEM REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TAR TAR FAR FER TAR TEn Thn

As at 31 December 2015 ®2015%12A318
Non-derivative financial liabilities Fit2BERE
Non-interest bearing ERBME - 146,431 9,016 18,637 11,248 65,506 250,838 250,838
Fixed interest rate instruments TSI 3.68 - - - 58,110 - 58,110 56,048
Variable interest rate instruments FZEIA 2.60 171 23,948 41,917 501,842 1,282,900 1,851,384 1,805,785
147,208 32,964 60,554 571,200 1,348,406 2,160,332 2,112,671
Derivative financial instruments fitL@IA
~ net settlement —GEEE
Interest rate swaps ket - - 81 [b) 26 29 226
Weighted
average Total
effecive ~ On demand Over  undiscounted Canying
interestraste  or0-30days  31-60days  61-90days  91-365 days 365 days cash flows amount
IETHIE 0-30% 31-60K 61-90K 91-365% 365K REMEME REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FhL Th TART ThL TAT FHL TR
As at 31 December 2014 #2014%12A318
Non-derivative financial liabiliies FlitaBEE
Non-interest bearing BEARE = 312712 75598 9031 11,032 = 340373 340373
Fixed interest rate instruments EEIA 368 - 23990 - 74171 123618 21,779 214615
Variable interest rate instruments HEETR 230 33,579 25,408 213,270 305,761 1,184,980 1,762,998 1,724,428
346,291 56,996 222,301 390,964 1,308,598 2,325,150 2279416
Derivative financial instruments L BIA
— net setflement ~FEFE
Interest rate swaps piE=t 106 - 326 407 20 859 848
Foreign currency forward contracts SNEREAN - - 4161 - - 4161 4161
106 = 4487 407 20 5,020 5,009
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. &@MTRE)

39b. IR EERBEREE(E)

39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or 0-30 days” time band in
the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2014, the
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$5,616,000 (2015: Nil). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believed that such
bank loans would be repaid within one to five years after the
reporting date of 31 December 2014 in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
loans with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements.

mBELmE(E)

BB pER ERE RIS 2 RITE
FELMBBHBASTAATEEK
0-30K | 2 RIS ER - 722014
F12A310 - ZERITEEZEA
EE£EEA £ 4561600087 (2015
Fm) o A RAKE BN
% BETHERTUETEEE
KENRF BN 2 By iE#E - EEHEE -
ZEIRITEEBR2014F 12831
AfEASHE—FE2RAFAREE
RpEAEECERBHEE - T
FRBIEE BB EREEKZ
IRITEE - BEXBRAEREE
A2 BIEADAT ©

Weighted
average Total
effective Over undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  0-30days  31-60days  61-90 days 91-365 days 365days  cash flows amount
LTS fitl ERiE)
MEFIE 0-30% 31-60% 61-90% 91-365X% 365K BeREMH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TET TET TET TET TET TER TET
As at 31 December 2015 R2015512A318
Bank loans BITER - - - - - - - -
As at 31 December 2014 20145127318
Bank loans BT 217 1402 1,408 1413 1438 - 5,661 5616

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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39c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
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39c. eMITAZAFREE

AW FRHEEBAEEZSEERE

determines fair values of various financial assets and financial EReHAasE A?TﬁZ?ziﬁﬁfﬁ o
liabilities.
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and () RIBLEMEREZLFEE

financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Financial assets/ Fair value

financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy

LREE/SRER RATRSZATE AFERA

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

1) Foreign currency forward - Assets Level 2
contracts dlassified —HK$1269,000  £24
as derivative financial BE
instruments in the —1,269,0007% 1T
consolidated statement of Liabilities
financial position - HK$4,161,000

1) REFEBBARR TR B

PRAITEERIA —4,161,000%7T
ZINEREAY

2) Interest rate swaps Liabilities Assets Level 2
classified as derivative - HK$226,000 - HK$31,000 E28
financial instruments inthe  Bf& BE
consolidated statement of —226,000/ T —31,0008 7T
financial position Liabilities

2) R BRE ~ HK$848,000

AREMTESRTA BE
ZHEE —848,000/7T
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ZAEEEHEEREHENR
ZAFE

rEEHBLHEERSHE
BREHmEPRIEZAFER
2 TRAEENTHZE S
BEEREREEATECE
EAFN(LERFAZEER
AN ABE) -

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
HERTRIERAYE

Discounted cash flow. Future cash
flows are estimated based on
forward exchange rates (from
observable forward exchange
rates at the end of the reporting
period) and contracted forward
rates, discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties.

PRERER - REEWIE L RE
(RS HARIBENREING
FBE) REFTAMEBLER
fEERRBR R - WA —1E
HRMEHFEERBOLES
ZBEH o

Discounted cash flow. Future cash
flows are estimated based on
forward interest rates (from
observable yield curves at the
end of the reporting period)
and contracted interest rates,
discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties.

HHRBEM - BREHNE(RRE
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

(For the year ended 31 December 2015) (EZE2015F12A3181EFE)

39c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis (Continued)

There were no transfers between 3 levels in both years.

(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (but fair value disclosures are required)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding
derivative instruments) recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
the fair value measurements of all derivative financial
instruments of the Group are categorised into Level
2. The fair values of the financial assets and financial
liabilities included in the Level 2 category have been
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with
the most significant inputs being the discount rate that
reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

39d.Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial
assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers
similar financial instruments, irrespective of whether they
are offset in the Group'’s consolidated statement of financial
position.
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39d.Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements

and similar agreements (Continued)

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master

netting arrangements and similar agreements

Gross amounts
of recognised
consolidated
financial
assets

BERGSE
SREELR
HK$'000
TER

As at 31 December 2015
Bank balances

R2015€128318

PITER 2,697

As at 31 December 2014
Bank balances

R20145128318

RITEHR 481

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
liabilities

set off in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position
FEUBRRE
WA IS 2
SREE
HK$'000

THER

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements and similar agreements

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
liabilities
[R5
SREEEE
HK$'000

THET

As at 31 December 2015
Derivatives

R2015€128318

fTETA (226)

As at 31 December 2014
Derivatives

R201451278318

FTETA (5,009)

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
assets

set off in the
statement of
financial
position
FRUBRRE
WA LS 2
SREE
HK$'000

THET

The disclosures set out in the tables above include derivative
contracts through the banks. The related collaterals are
included in bank balances. If a default occurs, the banks are
able to exercise the right to offset against any favourable

derivative contracts and/or the collaterals placed.

117

39d.

Net amounts
of financial
assets
presented

in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position
GEMBRRR
RER] A
EEFR
HK$'000
TER

2,697

481

Net amounts
of financial
liabilities
presented

in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position
FERMBMRRE
RE] A
SETE
HK$'000
TER

(226)

(5,009)

Annual Report 2015 F 3

BRESE  THTEERFELTER
BB cREERSRERE
(#&)
BRI - ABTHEGIRELHR
Blllpme 2MEE
Related amounts not
set off in the consolidated
statement of financial position
DEAGFEHBERRERA
E#zREeE
Cash
Financial collateral Net
instruments received amount
2
SRIA ReEAm B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEr TR
(226) - 241
(283) = 198
BRI - B THEGIRE LR
Blllpmee/MEE
Related amounts not
set off in the consolidated
statement of financial position
DEAGFEHBERRRA
EHEZEBER
Cash
Financial collateral Net
instruments received amount
2 WE
SRIA ReEAm R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR
226 - -
283 = (4,726)

ERAH BB RIRBEBRITAIL
ZITERR - ARERRERERE
RITAERRP - MBLHEL - RITHE
TR N M HRITERZT
EAHR,/HE 7 RE R G ER
#H o



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED ¥EX{t THRA A

Financial Summary
CypyY

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHT T FAT FHET

RESULTS E

Revenue WA 2,155,710 1,520,512 1,329,131 1,560,028 1,705,879
Profit before taxation BRA A A A 726,964 418,951 374,957 411,470 355,943
Income tax expenses FRiSHisz (50,584) (57,014) (66,225) (81,359) (86,266)
Profit for the year FIR %A 676,380 361,937 308,732 330,111 269,677

At 31 December

R+=-—A=+—8
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHT FAT FET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERE&E

Total assets BERT 2,833,682 3,492,177 4,174,634 4,714,045 4,622,040
Total liabilities afEesE (1,175,061) (1,598,338) (2,044,026) (2,416,082) (2,275,762)
Net assets BEFR 1,658,621 1,893,839 2,130,608 2,297,963 2,346,278
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Statement of Financial Position of the Company
ZAN/NSIE SO s

A summarised information statement of financial position of the

Company as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 is as A Z@ AR RRBLMAT

ARARPR2015F12831H K2014512 A31

follows:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
ASSETS BE
Investments in a subsidiary A EIRE 57,987 221,714
Amount due from a subsidiary FE BT /&8 A B 5RIE - 40,528
Prepayments TEfSRIR 172 172
Bank balances RITHEER 342 162
58,501 262,576
LIABILITIES af
Other payables H bR 3,485 4,041
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAST BT /BB A Bl 5RIE 7,087 =
Bank borrowings RITRE - 5616
10,572 9,657
47,929 252,919
Capital and reserves BARR
Share capital fig A 82,500 82,500
Reserves (note) GG (34,571) 170,419
47,929 252,919
note:  Reserves Hst *E
Share
Share Contributed Translation options Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
B3 EE BERRH% ERFE BRERSE RihaF Ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2014 M2014F1A1H 20,307 (102,808) 12,735 163,430 38,971 132,635
Profit for the year FNEE - - - - 157,238 157,238
Dividends 35, = = = - (115500)  (115,500)
Exchange differences arising RERmEE Y
from translation N =5 - - (3,954) - - (3,954)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A318 20307  (102,808) 8,781 163,430 80,709 170,419
Profit for the year F R F) - - - - 83,362 83,362
Dividends (R3] - - - - (123,750)  (123,750)
Exchange differences arising HeEMmmEELZ
from translation N ZRE - - (3,413) - - (3,413)
Lapse of share option BB R R - - (3759)  (163,430) 6,000 (161,189)
At 31 December 2015 ®2015% 128318 20307  (102,808) 1,609 - 46,321 (34,571)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the aggregate
net tangible assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to a group

reorganisation in December 2001 and the nominal value of the Company's shares issued for TR ANEE.Z Z58 °

the acquisition.
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Schedule of Property

YZEE R

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Location

1 B

Area Use

[ Rz

B"EMR

Group'’s
ownership

SEEEE

Stage of completion
e A PR ER

Expected date of
completion
FRHATER B

East of Jiangnan Avenue,
South of Jinmao Road,

West of Jingang Road,
Jiagsu Yangtze River
Development Zone,
China

P EDTI#E)T
FEEILIE
RIELAR -
BIXBEIARE -
SRR IAT

16,606M?2

16,606F 5K KRiEE

Undetermined

Not yet commenced 100%

construction

NG 100%
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED
8th Floor, Liven House

61-63 King Yip Street

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 23199888 Fax: (852) 2319 9333

B THERATE
BB BEERENCEHC1-635 A A E8iE
FiE 0 (852) 23199888 {HE : (852) 2319 9333
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